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VALDES, GARCIA, MARIN & MARTINEZ, LLP 
Cl,RTJf!EO PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of the 
Puerto Rico Industria l Development Company 
(A Component Uni t of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the Puerto Rico Industrial 
Development Company (PRIDCO) (a component uni t of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico), 
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the basic financial 
statements, which collectively comprise PRIDCO's basic financial statements as listed in the 
table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparat ion and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control 
re levant to the preparation and fa ir presentation of financial statements that are. free from 
material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibil ity is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with audit ing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan ancl perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. I n making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
fi nancial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity's internal controls. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the fi nancial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence that we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

1250 Ponce de Leon Ave. San Jose Oldg., Suite 702 San Juan, P.R. 00907 I P.O. Box 364831 San Juan, P.R. 00936-4831 
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Opinion 

I n our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, In all material 
respects, the financial position of the Puerto Rico Industrial Development Company as of 
June 30, 2017 and the changes in its financial position and its cash f lows for the year 
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 

Emphasis of Matters 

Uncertainty about Ability to Continue as a Going Concern 

The accompanying basic fi nancial statements have been prepared assuming that PRIDCO will 
continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, PRIDCO has 
Incurred recurring losses, has significant balances and transactions with t he Commonwealth 
of Puerto Rico, the Governmental Development Bank and the Economic Development Bank 
and is currently negotiating a restructuring of its debt under Title VI of the U.S. Congress 
Puerto Rico Oversight, Management, and Economic Stability Act (PROMESA). Management's 
evaluation of the events and conditions and management's plans regarding these matters are 
also described in Note 2. The basic fi nancial statements do not include any adjustments that 
might result from the outcome of this uncerta inty. Our opinion on the basic financial 
statements is not modified with respect to th is matter. 

Adoption of GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions ·and 
GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the 
Measurement Date 

As discussed in Note 1 to the basic financial statements, PRIDCO adopted the provisions of 
the Government Auditing Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Pensions - an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 and GASB No. 
71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to l'lle Measurement Date - an 
amendment of GASB Statement No. 68, effective July 1, 2016. Our opinion is not modified 
with respect to this matter. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management's discussion and analysis on pages 4 to 9, the Schedule of PRIDCO's 
Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liabili ty on page 47 and the Schedule of PRIDCO's 
Contributions- Pension Plan on page 48 be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers It to be an 
essential part of financia l reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical Context. We have applied certa in limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with audit ing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquires of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management"s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financia l statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the lim ited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 
opinion or provide any assurance. 
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Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements 
that comprise the Puerto Rico Industrial Development Company's basic financial statements. 
The Schedule of Changes in Cash and Sinking Fund per Trust Indenture for the year ended 
June 30, 2017, included on page SO is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is 
not a required part of t he basic financial statements. This schedule has been subjected to 
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our 
opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements 

taken as a w hole. i ,I , 4 ,,.-~ 
V,. I.J ~. ~ r l, a:tfu_ 1,...i.J) 
W,C}\&,O I I I - d I 

San Juan, Puerto Rico 
February 26, 2019 

Stamp 400658 was 
affixed to the original 
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PUERTO RICO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDI TED) 
JUNE 30, 2017 

Management Discussion and Analysis 

This management's discussion and analysis section (MD&A) provides a narrat ive overview and 
analysis of the fi nancial activ ities of the Puerto Rico Indust rial Development Company 
(PRIDCO) fo r the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. The MD&A is intended to serve as an 
int roduction to PRIDCO's basic fi nancia l statements, wh ich have the following components: 
( 1) proprietary fund financial statements, (2) notes to the basic fi nancial statements (3) 
required supplementary information, and (4) other supplementary information. The MD&A is 
designed to (a) assist the reader in focusing on significant matters, and (b) provide an 
overview of PRIDCO's financial activities. The following presentat ion is by necessity highly 
summarized, and in order to gain a thorough understanding of the PRIDCO's financia l 
condit ion, the financial statements, and notes to the financial statements should be reviewed 
in their entirety. 

Financial H ighlights 

• The assets and deferred outf lows of resources exceeded its liabi lit ies and deferred 
inflows of resources of PRIDCO atthe close of the fiscal year 2017 by $195 m illion (net 
position). Th is amount includes $196 million of deficit . 

• Total revenues decreased 13% and tota l expenses decreased 15%, when compared 
with fisca l year 2016. The change in net position decreased $2 mi llion, with respect to 
prior year. 

• The investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2017 was $642 million, net of 
depreciation. 

• Long term debt act ivity (bonds, loans, notes payable and capita l leases) decreased by 
$19 million when compared with fiscal year 2016. 

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis is in tended to serve as an introduct ion to PRIDCO's basic financial 
statements. This report includes the management's discussion and analysis, the basic 
financial statements, the notes that explain in more detail the information conta ined in the 
financial statements, required supplementary information and other supplementary 
informat ion. 

Management's 
Di~cusslon Dnd 

Analysis 

Components of the Financial I 
Position 

Basic Financial 
Statements 

Required 
Supplementary 

Information 

Proprietary Fund Financial 
Statements 

Notes to the Basic Financial 
Statements 

Propr ietary Fund Financial Statements 

Other Supplementary 
Infommtiorl 

Proprietary fund report ing focuses on the determination of operating income, changes in net 
position (or cost recovery), financial posit ion, and cash flows. Proprietary fund statements of 
net posit ion and revenues, expenses, and changes in net position are presented using the 
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. 
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PUERTO RICO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 
JUNE 30, 2017 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data 
provided in the proprietary financial statements. 

Required Supplementary Information 

The financial statements and notes are followed by the requ ired supplementary informat ion 
that includes the schedules related to pension plan as requ ired by GASB No. 68. 

Other Supplementary Information 

The other supplementary in formation includes the schedule of changes in cash and 
sinking fund per trust indenture. 

Financial Analysis 

The following is an analysis of the financial position and changes in the financial position of 
PRIDCO's activities for fiscal year 2017: 

Net Position 

Condensed financial information from the statement of net position as of June 30, 2017 and 
2016 is as follows (expressed in thousands): 

June 30 Change 
2016 (as 

2017 restated} In Dollars Percent 

Assets 
Current asset !.:i $ 59,273 $ 62,164 $ (2,891) (5) 0/(1 

Capita l a ssets, net 6 42,034 655 ,904 (13,870) (2) % 

Other noncurren t assets 4 5 746 67 861 (22 ,115) (33) % 

Tott, I assets _ _ 747.053 785,929 (38 ,876) (5) % 

Deferred outflows of resources 
o ~fcrrcd loss on refu ndinn 5 22 559 {37) (7) % 

Deferred outflows re lc1 ted to pc nston 40 8 1 ~ 30,084 lO 7 :Jl 3 6 % 
Tota l assets an d deferred 01..1tflc)ws of 
resources ~ '/88,390 1 816 15 72 $ (28, 182) (3) % 

Liabilities 
Current liahilltlcs $ 61,269 $ 63,7 32 $ (2,163) (4) % 

Noncurrc n t llabllitles 528,283 ~; 28 685 (4 02) (0) % 

Tota l liabilities 589,552 592,417 (7.1865 ) (0) % 

Deferred inflows of resources 
Deferred lnflo .. vs re lated to pensio n 3 4 61 2 808 653 2 3 % 

Net Position 
Net Investment in ca pit~1I ;)~sets 389,129 400,196 ( 11,067) (3 ) % 
Net restricted ~1sscts 2,343 20,!>~.>8 (18,215) (89) % 

Deficit (196,095) (199 ,407) 3,312 (2) % 

To ta l net posit ion _ _ 195.377 221,347 (25,970) (l2) % 

Totc1 l lh.1bilitiP.s, deferred inflows of re.!:i our<:cH; 
and nE:!t posit.Ion s 788,39Q :I; 8 16,572 :I! (28, 182J (3) % 

As of June 30, 2017, net position of $195 million Is composed of $389 mi llion of net investment 
In capital assets, $2 million rest ricted and a deficit of $196 million. Total net position changed 
from $221 million to $195 million, a decrease of approximately $26 million or 12%. This 
decrease is primarily due to the implementation of GASB No. 68. 
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PUERTO RICO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 
JUNE 30, 2017 

Total assets decreased, compared with prior year, by $38. 9 m ill ion or 5%. The net decrease 
is mostly due to a decrease of capita l assets of $13. 9 ml Ilion and a decrease of $18.3 of the 
sinking fund reserve accounts. Current assets decreased, compared with prior year, 
approximately $2.9 mil lion. The net decrease in current asset is related to a decrease in 
accounts receivable of $7.2 mi llion offset by an increase in cash of$1.4 million and an increase 
in the current portion of the sinking fund reserve accounts of $3. 7 million. However, t he 
increase in cash and cash equivalents was offset by a custod ial credit risk loss of 
approximately $2 million on PRIDCO's deposit with EDB. A deferred outflow of resources was 
recognized during the year 2016 in relation to the implementation of GASB No. 68 and has a 
balance of $40.8 mi llion as of June 30, 2017. 

Tota l liabilities decreased for the amount of $3 million, primarily due to the net effect of the 
payments of principal balance made during the year and the recognition of liabilities related 
to the implementation of the GASB No. 68 and a new plan of voluntary termination benefits. 
Current liabilities decreased $2.5 million. The decrease was primarily due to a decrease of 
accounts payable of $8.8 million and a decrease in the amount due to the Commonwealth of 
$10.4 m illion, offset by an increase in the current portion of loans and payable to commercial 
banks of $10.3 million and an increase in accrued interest of $4.2 mill ion. 

Restricted net position is mainly composed of amounts deposi ted in the sinking fund reserve 
for payments of bonds payable and related interest. Restricted net position decreased 
approximately $18.2 mi llion or 89%. 

Revenues, expenses, and changes in net position 

Condensed financia l Information of the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net 
position for the years ended on June 30, 2017 and 2016 is as follows (expressed in 
thousands): 

Operating Revenues 
Rent<JI inco me , net 
Total n on - o perating reve nues 

Total re ve nue s 
Operating expenses: 

Sa larie s ;ind wugcs 
Administrative, genera l a n d other expenses 
Oer,rP.c:iation u nd amortization 

·rotc!I operating expenses 
'fotal non-opernting expenses 
Tota l e x penses 

Loss before cap lta I contributions 

Capital contributions 
Change in net position 

Net position, beginning of year 
R.es t-,temP.nt 

Net 1>osition, beginning or year, as restated 

Net position, end of year 

J'une 30 
2016, (as 

2017 •·estated) 

$ 57,880 $ 65,602 
_ _ (?,2Sl 8 411 

64 131 7 4,013 

27,844 24,667 
22,692 37,403 
19 626 20,177 
70, 1 6 ?. 82,247 
22,119 _ _ 25,996 

9 2 281 - = 108 243 

(28,150) (34,230) 

_ _ 2 , 180 6 657 
(25,970) (27,57 3) 

3 55 ,950 375,029 
!134,603) ___ig§,109) 

221 ,347 248,920 

;f; l.95,377 $ 221i:J47 

Chango 

Jn Dollars Percent 

,; (7 ,722) (12) % 
_ _ (2, 160) (?..6) % 

(9,882) (13 ) % 

3,)77 13 % 
(14,711) (39) % 

(551) (3) % 
(12,08S) (15) 0/o 

!3,877 ) (15) 0/o 

(15,962) ( 15) % 

6,080 ( 18) % 

_ _ (4 477) (67) % 

1 603 (6) % 
(19,079) (5) % 

!8,494) 1 00 % 

(27 ,573) (l.1) % 

"' (25,970) ( 1 2 ) % 

PRIDCO reported a negative change in net position of approximately $26 m illion, a decrease 
of $2 million or 6%, with respect to prior year's change in net posit ion. This decrease is the 
result of a decrease of total revenues of 13% and a decrease of total expenses of 15%, when 
compared with fiscal year 2016. 
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PUERTO RICO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 
( A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 
JUNE 30, 2017 

Total revenues consist mostly of rental revenue of approximately $58 million. Rental revenues 
decreased $7.7 mi llion or 12% when compared with 2016. Non-operating revenues decreased 
$2.2 million or 26%. 

Operating expenses decreased by approximately $12.1 million or 15%, as a result of a net 
Increase in salaries and wages of $3.2 million due to a new retirement incentive plan, offset 
by a decrease in administrative and general expenses of approximately $14.7 million. 

Non-operating expenses decreased by approximately $3.9 mill ion or 15%, mostly due to 
the overall decrease of the interest portions of notes and loans payable made during the 
year ended June 30, 2017. 

PRIDCO's expense distribution for the year ~nded on June 30, 2017 is as follows: 

Non-operating 

expenses-"-
interest '\_ 

24% 

Depreciation _,, 
and 

amortization 
21% 

Capital Assets 

TOTAL EXPENSES 

/

Salaries and 
wages 
30% 

Administrative, 
general and 

other expenses 
25% 

At the end of the fiscal year, PRIDCO has invested $642 million, net of accumulated 
depreciation, In a broad range of capita l assets, including land held for improvements, land 
on leased projects, building and improvements, machinery and equipment, among others. 

Long~Term Debt 

At the end of the fiscal year, PRIDCO reported $331 million in bonds, loans and notes payable 
and obligations under capital leases. This represented a reduction of $19 mill ion, with respect 
to the prior year. During the year PRIDCO did not obtain new long-term debt. 

Current Known Facts 

Hurricanes Irma and Maria 

On September 2017 Puerto Rico was impacted by Hurricanes Irma and Marfa, major 
category 4 hurricanes, causing a level of widespread destruction in many areas including 
infrastructure, housing, environment, public and private property, and disrupting the 
Commonwealth and PRIDCO's operations. PRIDCO estimated all damages suffered in 
about $187 million. The insurance company advanced the amount of $1.8 million for 
damage m itigation purposes but total amount of insurance recovery has not been 
determined. 
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PUERTO RICO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 
JUNE 30, 2017 

Capital lease agreement converted into a master operating lease agreement 

Effective December 18, 2017, assets held under capital lease agreement were refinanced 
under a new master lease agreement due on December 18, 2022. The new agreement 
provides for the substitution of 60-month old equipment for new equipment without 
altering the total monthly minimum lease payment from previous lease agreement. On 
March 27, 2018, the contract was amended to limit maximum charge for copies made in 
excess of contracted number for the term of the new agreement to $21,300. A second 
amendment was signed on May 25, 2018 to: (a) substitute all the 60-month equipment 
old for new equipment, (b) reduce monthly minimum lease payment from $7,350 to 
$7,294 and, (c) expressly eliminate the "financing agreement" terminology from the 
contract. It is management's intention to classify this new master lease agreement as an 
operating lease. 

Commonwealth's Fiscal Plan 

The Oversight Board certified the Commonwealth's fiscal plan in March 2017. On October 
30, 2017, the Oversight Board required the Commonwealth to revise it because the 
damage inflicted on Puerto Rico by Hurricane Maria. A revised fisca l plan was certified on 
April -20, 2018 a~er in tense negotiations. Due to further discussions between the 
Oversight Board and the Commonwealth, the Oversight Board updated and certified t he 
fiscal plan in June 2018, which served as the basis for the 2019 fiscal year budget. On 
October 23, 2018 a New Fiscal Plan certified by the Oversight Board, incorporated refined 
healthcare projections based on actuarial estimates, new federal fund estimates, updated 
revenue and expenditure figures and changes in Government policy to impact overall 
growth based in two main areas as follows: 

a) Structural Reforms - measures to improve the economy such as (1) Human Capital 
and Welfare Reforms, (2) Ease of Doing Business Reforms, (3) Power Sector Reforms 
and (4) Infrastructure Reform and Capital Investment. 

b} Fiscal Reforms - fiscal measures to create a sustainable fiscal Future for Puerto Rico 
by reducing costs while maintaining and improving the quality of important services. 
The measures include t he following: (1) Tax compliance and fees enhancement, (2) 
Agency efficiencies, (3} Pension reform, (4) Healthcare reform, (5) Office of the CFO, 
and (6) Reduction of appropriations. The ultimate outcome of the reforms is 
undeterminable. 

Among the several measures to be taken, the following fisca l reforms may have a 
significant impact on PRIDCO's operations: 

• Tax compliance and.f~es enhancement - The Plan includes a comprehensive 
tax reform that intends to reduce corporate, individual and sales and use 
tax rates, eliminates non-revenue generating incentives and subsidies while 
maintaining revenue neutrality. Measures may have a significant impact on 
PRIDCO's rental revenues. 

• Agency efficiencies - Act. 141 of July 11, 2018 enabled the first 
reorganization plan that regulates the consolidation of ten agencies under 
the new Economic Development and Commerce Department (DDEC by its 
Spanish acronym). The organizational chart of the new DDEC integrates 
the Tax Exemption Office, the State Office of Energy Policy, the Regional 
Center Corp., and the Permits & Endorsements Management Office, as 
programs or offices within DDEC. Likewise, the Trade & Export Co. and the 
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PUERTO RICO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 
JUNE 30, 2017 

Tourism Co. are integrated into DDEC once the paperwork requi red for their 
merger is completed. The Puerto Rico Industrial Development Co. and the 
Roosevelt Roads Redevelopment Authority remain attached to the DDEC, 
with the Planning Board now also ascribed to the new DDEC. 

The new DDEC is going to carry out functions previously discharged by 
PRIDCO. The promotion and indust rial incentives functions are fully 
t ransferred to the new DDEC. Also, the new DDEC is entitled to manage, 
operate, rent, sell, lease, assign or otherwise dispose of PRIDCO's real 
estate inventory, when previously endorsed by PRIDCO. 

• Pension reform - The Plan includes the following measures: (1) freeze the 
Teachers (TRS) and Judiciary Retirement Systems (JRS) and t ransition 
them to a segregated defined contribution plan; (2) institute a 10% average 
pension reduction applicable to all actual retirees witt1 combined retirement 
plan and Social Security benefits in excess of the poverty level of $1,000 
per month starting in FY 2020; (3) enroll teachers, police officers and judges 
under the age of 40 in the Social Security. 

GDB's Fiscal Plan 

GDB's Fiscal Plan establishes financial restructuring and closing of GDB operations that 
will allow for a smooth transition of GDB's current operations. Consequently, a 
Restructuring Support Agreement, dated May 15, 2017 (RSA) provides for the 
restructuring of a significant portion of GDB's liabi lities. On June 2017, GDB submitted to 
the Oversight Board a proposed amended Fiscal Plan that incorporated the structure 
agreed, which was certified and approved by the Oversight Board on July 12, 2017. GDB's 
substantial operations ceased in March 2018, after AAFAF announced certain 
amendments to the RSA w hich became effective pursuant to its terms on April 6, 2018, 
after obtaining the signature of the number of holders of GDB's Participating Bond Claims 
required. 

Contacting PRIDCO's Financial Management: 

This financial report is designed to provide our customers and creditors with a general 
overview of the PRIDCO's finances and to demonstrate PRIDCO's accountability for the 
money it receives. If you have questions about t his report or need additional financial 
information, contact the Puerto Rico Industrial Development Company, P.O. Box. 
362530, San Juan, Puerto Rico, 00936-2530. 
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PUERTO RICO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (IN THOUSANDS) 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2017 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents, net 
Sinking fund reserve accounts, at accreted cost, restricted 
Rent, loans and accounts receivable, net 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 

Total current assets 

Non-current assets: 
Investment in equ ity secur ities, at cost 
Due from t he Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Capital assets, net: 

Land and construction in progress 
BuildinQ, improvements and machinery 

Total non-current assets 

Total assets 

Deferred outflows of resou rces -
Deferred loss on refundlnqs 
Deferred outflows related to pension 

Tota l deferred outflows of resources 

Tota I assets and deferred outflows of resources 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities : 

Current portion of: 
Loans and notes payable to commercial banks 
Bonds payable 
Obligations under capital leases 

Accounts payable and other accrued liabllltles 
Due to the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Compensated absences 
Environmental liabi li ties 
Accrued interest 
Termination benefits accrual, current portion 

Total current liabilities 

See the accompanying notes to the basic financial statements 
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$ 32,926 
13,723 
11,372 

1 252 

59 273 

4,093 
4 1,653 

236,789 
405 245 

687,780 

747 0 53 

522 
40,815 

41 337 

1 788,390 

$ 19,957 
10,250 

l J.7 
7,729 
9,868 
1,539 

141 
10,138 

1 530 

61 269 

(Continues) 



PUERTO RICO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (IN THOUSANDS) 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2017 

Non-current liabilities: 
Bonds payable 
Notes payable t o Government Development Bank 
Loans and notes payable to commercial banks 
Due to the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Net pension liability 
Termination benefits accrual, net of current port ion 
Compensated absences 
Rent and other deposits 
Legal liabilities 
Contract retention 
Environmental l iabilit ies 
Undistributed proceeds from sale 
Obligations under capita l leases 

Total non-current liabi lit ies 

Total llablll t ies 

Deferred inflows of resources -
Deferred inflows related to pension 

Total liabi lities and deferred inflows of resou rces 

Net position (deficit) : 
Net investment in capital assets 
Net restricted assets 
Deficit 

Total net position 

See the accompanying notes to the basic financial statements 
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$ 147,804 
77,772 
74,603 

4,719 
180,808 

9,4 20 
2,204 
7,531 
6,781 
1,940 

14,259 
268 
174 

528 283 

589,552 

3 461 

593,013 

389,129 
2,343 

(196,095) 

$ 195,377 



PUERTO RICO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION (IN THOUSANDS) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

OPERATING REVENUES: 
Rental Income, substantially from industrial properties, net $ 57,880 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Salaries and wages ( including voluntary termination benefits) 27,844 
Administrative and qeneral 17,270 
Depreciation and amortization 19,626 
Maintenance and rer>airs, net 5 422 

Total operating expenses 70,162 

OPERATING LOSS (12,282) 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES): 
Net gain on sale of properties 5,944 
Net investment income 98 
Interest income on loans 209 
Custodial credit risk loss on deposits with qovernmental bank (2,047) 
Impairment loss in capital assets (363) 
Interest expense ( 19, 709! 

Total non-operating revenues (expenses), net !15,868! 

Loss before capital contributions (28,150) 

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS: 
Specia l Fund for Economic Development 2 180 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION (25,970) 

NET POSITION - beg inning of year as restated 221,347 

NET POSITION - end of year $ 195,377 

See the accompanying notes to the basic financial statements 
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PUERTO RICO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS ( IN THOUSANDS) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Cash collected from rental income 
Cash paid for salaries and benefits 
Cash paid for supplies and services 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTJVITIES: 

Proceeds from sale of properties 
Collections of capital contributions 
Payments for capita l assets 
Payments of obligations under capita l leases 
Payments of bonds payable 
Payments of notes and loans payable 
Interest paid 

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIV!TIES: 

Net payments to Corn rnonwealth of Puerto Rico 

Net cash used in non-capital and related f inancing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM !NVESTING ACTIVITIES: 

Net change in sinking fund -redemption and bond service accounts 
Interest col lected on Investments, loans and other non-operating revenue 

Net cash provided by investlnQ activi t ies 

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQU!VALENTS 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - beglnninQ of yea r 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - end of year 

See the accompanying notes to the basic financial statements 
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$ 65,051 
(26,299) 
(15,669) 

23,083 

6,469 
2,180 

(8, 196) 
(215) 

(10,065) 
(9,613) 

(14,945) 

(34,385) 

(5,951) 

(5,951) 

18,321 
308 

18,629 

1,376 

31,550 

$ 32,926 

{Continues) 



PUERTO RICO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (IN THOUSANDS) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

RECONCILIATION Of OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH 
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Operating loss 
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash provided by 

operating activities 
Depreciation and amortization expense 
Provision for doubtful accounts 
Increase in accounts receivable and deposits 
Decrease in prepaid expenses and other assets 
Increase in termination benefits accrua l 
Decrease in compensated absences 
Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabil it ies 

Total adjustments 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION ON NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL 
AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

Accretion of bonds payable 

Amortization of bond discount 

Capital additions through obligations under capital leases 

Capi ta l asset received as a contribution 

See the accompanying notes to the basic financial statements 
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$ ( 12,282) 

19,626 
10,986 
(3,815) 

793 
3,438 

( 1,335) 
5 672 

35,365 

$ 23,083 

_j_ 561 

$ 15 
$ 195 

~ ,251 



PUERTO RICO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 
{A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The Puerto Rico Industrial Development Company (PRIDCO) is a component unit of 
the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the Commonwealth), created in 1942 by Act No. 
188, as amended. PRIDCO is engaged In promoting the development of new local 
enterprises and encouraging U.S. and foreign Investors to establish and expand their 
business operations in Puerto Rico. To accomplish its mission, PRIDCO, among its 
many programs, const ructs industrial facllltles for lease or sa le to qualified enterprises. 

a. Reporting Entity - The basic financial statements include PRIDCO as wel l as all 
the operations of the component units, if any. 

A component unit Is a legally separate entity for wh ich PRIDCO is financially 
accountable, or the nature or significance of their relationship with PRIDCO is such, 
that their exclusion would cause PRIDCO's basic fi nancial statements to be 
misleading or incomplete. Financial accountability exists If the primary government 
appoints a voting majority of the entity's govern ing body, and if either one of the 
following conditions exist: the primary government can impose its will on the other 
entity or the potentia l exists for the other entity to (1) provide specific fi nancial 
benefit to or (2) impose specific financial burdens on the primary government. A 
second criterion used in evaluating potential component units is if the nature and 
significance of the relationship between the entity and a primary government are 
such that to exclude the entity from the financial reporting entity would render the 
financia l statements to be m isleading or incomplete . U.S. GAAP detai ls two 
methods of presentation: blending the financia l data of the component unit's 
balances and transactions in a manner similar to the presentation of PRIDCO's 
bala.nces and transactions or discrete presentation of the component unit's financial 
data in columns separate From PRIDCO's balances and transactions. 

Based on the above criteria the following component units are presented blended 
In the financial statements: 

i. Puerto Rico Industrial I nvestment Corp. (PRIICO) owns a building in San 
Juan, where PRIDCO offices are located. These premises are leased to 
PRIDCO and other entities. 

ii. Puerto Rico Industrial Incentives Fund, Inc. (PRIIF) was created In March 
1997 to provide financial assistance to business enterprises, facil itate the 
promotion of new employment, and the retention of employment In the 
industrial and service sectors of Puerto Rico economy. Since 2014 it has 
no operational activities. 

The financial statements of PRIICO and PRIIF, even though they are legally separate, 
are reported as it they are part of PRIDCO because its govern ing body is in substance 
the same of the component units and PRIDCO's management has operational 
responsibility fo r them. 
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PUERTO RICO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE VEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Condensed financial information as of June 30, 2017 and for the fiscal year then ended of 
the component units is as follows: 

Statem ents of Net Position (I J; o f June 30, 2017 (In thousands): 

Current assets 

Due fron1 r-'RJDCO 

Capital assets, net 

Tota l as s ets 

Deferred outflows of resourc~s 

Tota l assets an d d e ferred outflows of resources 

Current lii:l bllll:lcs 

Due t o P RIDCO 

Non -current liabilities 

Tot al liabilities 

Net pos ition (deflclt) : 

Net Investment in cap ita l asset s 

Net position (d eficit) 

Total net pos it ion (deficit ) 

Tota l liabilities and net position 

St atements of Revenues, Expense s aod Chan ge s in Net Position 

for t he year end ed Jurl e 3 0, 2017 (In t housan ds): 

Ope rating reven ues 

Ope rl!tlng cx~>cn se s 

Operating loss 

Non-oper<•t lng expense: 

Interest expen se 

Cha n9 e in net position 

Net p ositon (deficit)-beginning of yea r 

Net positon (d eficlt ) -cnrl of yea r 

Sta temen ti:; o f C~sh !'lows for t h e year end ed Jun e 30, 2017 (Ir, thousa ,, ds): 

Net cash u sed in openi tir)Q act ivities 

Net c-.ash used in capita l an d related tinancin g <ir;.tivities 

Net cash provided by non -cap it<1 I <1nd re la ted Onanch,g a ctivities 

Ne t chan ge in cash 

Cash -be ginn ing o f year 

Cas h-e nd of year 

16 

PRIICO 

$ 1,525 
145 ,6 59 

12,068 

159,252 

522 

$159,774 

$ 20,372 

1.47,9 A4 

7 4,717 

243,073 

12,068 
(9 5,367 ) 

(8 3,299) 

$ 159 ,774 

$ 1 ,21 6 

4 ,04 8 

(2.,8 3 l ) 

6,063 
(8,895) 

(74 ,404) 

$ (83,299) 

$ (1,089) 

(1 5,4 00) 

16,797 

308 

875 

$ 1,183 

$ 172 

172 

$ 172 

$ 

172 

172 

$ 17 2 

$ 

172 

$ 172 

$ 

172 

$ 172 



PUERTO RICO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

b. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation­
The accompanying basic financial statements are prepared using the economic 
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Accord ingly, 
revenues are recognized when earned and expenses when Incurred, regardless 
of when cash is received or paid. 

c. Concentrat ion of Credit Risk - PRIDCO maintains cash on deposits with high rated 
fi nancial institutions, the Economic Development Bank for Puerto Rico (EDB) and 
the Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico (GDB), both components unit 
of the Commonwealth. The laws of t he Commonwealth requ ire from commercia l 
banks to fully collateralize all public funds deposited with them in excess of the 
amount insured by the Federal Government. The securities pledged by the banks 
as collateral for those deposits are under the custody of the Secretary of the 
Treasury in the name of the Commonwealth. Deposits with GDB and EDB, are 
exempt from the collateralization requirement and represent a custod ial credit 
risk, since in case of bankruptcy of the banks, PRIDCO would not recover its 
deposits. (Refer to Note 3) . 

d. Cash Equivalents - PRIDCO considers all highly liquid investments with original 
maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 

e. Investments - PRIDCO is authorized to invest in Puerto Rico and U.S. 
government obligations or in obligations guaranteed by the Puerto Rico or U.S. 
governments, its agencies or instrumental ities, Including mortgage loans secu r ed 
or guaranteed under federal housing laws. Investments in equity securities are 
stated at amortized cost and are mostly composed of common and preferred 
stock shares in private ent ities. 

f. Rent, Loans and Notes Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts -
PRIDCO's rent receivable arises from the leasing of industrial facilities to its 
customers. Rent is calculated based on agreed rates on executed contracts. The 
allowance for doubtful accounts is established through provisions recorded as an 
offset of rental Income. PRIDCO provides for an allowance for doubtful accounts on 
notes receivable and loans receivable upon an evaluation of the risks characteristics 
of those accounts, loss experience, economic cond itions and other pertinent 
factors. Write-offs are recorded against the allowance when management believes 
that the collectability of the principal is unl ikely. Recoveries of amounts previously 
written-off are credited to the allowance. Notwithstanding, the allowance is subject 
to and may be adjusted in the future because of changes in the economic or market 
conditions. 

Notes and loans receivable are presented at the outstanding unpaid principal 
balance reduced by the allowances for losses. These are measured for impairment 
when it is probable that al l amounts, including principal and interest, will not be 
collected in accordance with the contractual terms of the loan agreement . No 
impairment was recorded for the year ended June 30, 2017. 
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PUERTO RICO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

g. Restricted Assets - Rest ricted assets as of June 30, 2017, consist of the 
fol lowing ( in thousands): 

Sinking fund required by t rustee 
Unfunded balance 

Sinking fund balance as of June 30, 2017 

$ $ 18, 140 
c_~.4171 

_13.723 

Liabil ities payable from restricted assets consists of the fol lowing: 
Bonds and discount payable within one year 
Accrued bond interest payable as of June 30,2017 

Total liabilities payable from rest ricted assets 

Net restricted assets 

10,250 
1.130 

11.380 

$ 2.343 

h. Capital Assets - Capital assets are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation 
and amortization. Cost of construction includes, among other things, interest 
costs, and indirect costs consisting of payroll taxes and other fringe benefits. 
Depreciation and amortization is computed on the straight- line method at rates 
considered adequate to allocate the cost of the various types of property over 
their estimated useful lives. Expenditures for maintenance and repair costs t hat 
do not improve or extend the life of the respective assets are charged to operations 
as incurred. Additions, renewals, and betterments, unless of relatively minor 
amounts, are capitalized. Estimated useful lives and capitalization thresholds are 
as follows: 

Buildings and buildings improvements 
Machinery and equipment 
Furniture and vehicles 

Useful 
Life 

(Years) 
so 
15 

5-15 

Capitalization 
Threshold 

(In thousands) 
$ 1 
$ 1 
$ 1 

An asset is considered impaired when its service util ity has declined significantly 
and unexpectedly, and the event or change in circumstances is outside the normal 
life cycle of the asset . Impaired capital assets that will no longer be used by 
PRIDCO should be reported at the lower of their carrying value or fair value. 
Impairment losses on capital assets t hat will continue to be used by PRIDCO 
should be measured using the method that best reflects the diminished service 
utility of the capita l asset. Impairment of capital assets with physical damage 
generally should be measured using a restoration cost approach, an approach that 
uses the estimated cost to restore the capital asset to identify the portion of the 
historical cost of the capital asset that should be written off. 

i. Operating Revenue and Expenses - PRIDCO distinguishes operating revenues and 
expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally 
result from providing services In connection with the principal ongoing operations. 
Revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating 
revenues and expenses. 
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PUERTO RICO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
NOTES TO T HE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

J. Revenue Recognition - Revenue from rental activ ities related to industrial 
propert ies is reported as revenue on the accrual basis over the term of the lease 
based on the monthly rental fees established by each lease agreement. Most of 
the leases in effect are cancelable, subject to penalty in case of early 
termination. Revenue from non-exchange t ransactions consists of 
intergovernmental grants, including contributions in aid for construction, mainly 
from two funds of the Commonwealth. These are recorded as revenue as soon 
as all eligibility requirements are met. Contributions received by PRI DCO for 
construction and improvements of capital assets during the year ended June 30, 
2017, amounted to $2.18 million received from the Special Fund for Economic 
Development. 

k . Compensated Absences - Vacation and sick leave may be accumulated at a 
maximum of 60 days and 90 days, respectively. Employees earned 30 clays of 
vacations and 18 days of sick leave, annually, until Apri l 28, 2017. Effective 
April 29, 2017, when Act No. 26 became effective, all employees in each calendar 
year, will earn up a maximum of 15 ancl 12 days of vacations and sick leave, 
respectively. 

I. Voluntary Termination Benefits - PRI DCO recognizes a liabil ity and expense for 
voluntary termination benefits when the offer is accepted, and the amount can be 
estimated. 

m. Accounting for Pension Costs - PRIDCO accounts for pension costs under the 
provisions of GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Pensions-an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27, and GASB Statement No. 71, 
Pension Transitions for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date­
an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68, which was adopted by PRIDCO 
effective July 1, 2016. GASB Statement No. 68 replaced the requ irements of GASB 
Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Government 
Employers and requires that employers report a net pension liabili ty and related 
pension accounts, such as pension expense and deferred outflows/inflows of 
resources as determined by the Retirement System, as applicable, under the 
requirements contained in GASB Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension 
Plans-an amendment of GASB Statement No. 25. 

n. Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted In the United States of America requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities 
at the date of the financial statements, and th.e reported amounts of revenues 
and expenses during the reporting periods. Actua l results could differ from those 
estimates. 

o. Deferred Outflows/Inflows - In addition to assets, the statement of net position 
will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This 
separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents 
a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be 
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. I n 
addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a 

19 



PUERTO RICO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial 
statement element , deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net 
position that applies to a future period(s) and so wi ll not be recognized as an inflow 
of resources (revenue) until that t ime. In the statement of net position deferred 
outflows/inflows of resources arise as result of the t ransactions recorded as part 
of the GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions­
an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 and GASB Statement No. 71 Pension 
Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date - an 
amendment of GASB Statement No. 68. 

p. New Accounting Standards Adopted - Effective July 1, 2016, PRIDCO adopted 
GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions-an 
amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 and GASB Statement No. 71, Pension 
Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date - an 
amendment of GASB Statement No. 68. GASB Statement No. 68 requires that 
employers and nonemployer contributing entities report a net pension liabil ity and 
related pension expense as determined by the plans under the requirements 
conta ined in GASB Statement No. 67. During the year ended June 30, 2017, 
PRIDCO also implemented GASB Statement No. 71, requiring that upon 
implementation of GASB No. 68, a government recognizes a beginning deferred 
outflow of resources for its pension contributions made subsequent to the 
measurement date of the beginning net pension liability. 

The implementat ion of these statements has a significant Impact on PRIDCO's 
basic financial statement by restat ing the net position at beginning of year, 
recognition of deferred outflows and inflows of resources, and adding new 
disclosure requirements and required supplementary information. 

2. GOING CONCERN AND UNCERTAINTIES 

Management believes that there is substantial doubt about PRIDCO's ability to 
continue as a going concern because of the fo llowing factors : 

• PRIDCO has experienced recurring losses from operations. 

• As part of its normal operating activities, and as disclosed In Notes 3, 
10, and 11 to the basic fi nancial statements, PRIDCO has significant 
balances and t ransactions with the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the 
Commonwealth), with the Economic Development Bank for Puerto Rico 
(EDB) and w ith the Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico 
(GDB). As of June 30, 2017, the Commonwealth and GDB face significant 
uncerta int ies, including liquidity risk, which Is the risk of not having 
enough liquid financia l resources to meet their obligations when they come 
due. Because of these . uncertain ties, the amounts due f rom 
Commonwealth, disclosed in Note 10, may not be collected in the near 
future, and PRIDCO's management is unable to determine when such 
amounts will be appropria ted by the Legislature of the Commonwealth. 
Concurrently, the amounts due from the Commonwealth are the sole 
source for the payment of the line of credit and notes payable to GDB, 
as disclosed in Note 11 to the basic financia l statements. 
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PUERTO RICO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

• PRIDCO has been unable to fund all of its outstanding obligations from 
operating cash flows and is negotiating a rest ructuring of the debt under 
Title VI of PROMESA. 

In response to the fi nancia l difficulties and the economic and liquidity cns,s the 
Commonwealth is facing PRIDCO's management is working in a ten-year business 
plan. This plan will include a series of init iatives for increasing revenues through the 
renewal of existing leases contracts and sale of properties, and reducing administrative 
costs, including payroll costs, by the t ransfer of employees to the Department of 
Economic Development and Commerce, as considered in the reorganization plan. In 
addition, PRIDCO is currently negotiating a restructuring of its debt under Title VI of 
PROMESA. This t itle establishes an out-of-court process for modify ing the debt. 

3 , CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

PRIDCO's cash and cash equivalents as of June 30, 2017 consist of the following ( in 
thousands) : 

Ql&h dP.pnslted rn com-rerci:1I banks 

cash eQu1w1\en1;s: 
l.>P.posir accounts with: 

Govcm.rc,u Developrnenc tsank for Puerto ruco 
t<.onnnic Oevebpment B:1nk for PuL'f'l-0 R;co 

Total cash e<1ulv<1lents 

Custodial Book b11l11 nee 
Book balance credit risk loss after los,i 

Depository Am ount 
uninsured and 

balance uncollateral i:ted 

$ 32i926 ~$'----- ~!~• - =32,976 i 33,869 _,$c.,_ __ _ 

1,017 2,017 2,017 1,()1/ 

2047 2,047 2 017 Z.047 

4 O<i4 '1 064 4,064 1 06'1 

I 36,990 1 •!iJ6'1 i 32,926 $ • 37,9)} $ ---1,064 

Custodial Credit Risk Loss on Deposits with Government Development Bank 
for Puerto Rico and Economic Development Bank for Puerto Rico 

As explained in more d etai I in Note 20, the Commonwealth's credit rating 
downgrade in 2014 led private entities to reti re their businesses from EDB and 
preven ted GDB from receiv ing capita l. GDB crisis made many public agencies and 
corpora tions move their deposits from EDB to GDB, leading EDB to the point of 
liquidating its entire investment portfolio. 

Loans to the Commonwealth and Its instrumentalities constitute a significant portion 
of GDB's assets. Thus, the rating downgrade severely affected those entities which 
resu lted in operational deficits, lack of access to capital markets and consequently, 
delays in the repayment of loans outstanding with GDB, which left GDB w ith 
significant non-performing assets, limited liquidity and the Inability to repay its debts 
when they come due. Although, a Restructuring Support Agreement, dated May 15, 
2017 (RSA) was cert ified and approved by the Oversight Board on July 12, 2017, to 
provide for the restructuring of a significant portion of GDB's liabil ities, GDB's 
substantial operations ceased in March 2018. 

21 



PUERTO RICO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Even though EDB took several measures to control the decline in its operations, they 
were not enough. On October 23, 2018, the Financial Oversight and Management 
Board (the Oversight Board), a seven-member board established under PROMESA, 
approved the Commonwealth Fiscal Plan which included the closure of the EDB. 

As a result of the above-mentioned matters, PRIDCO recognized a custodial cred it 
risl< loss on deposits held in EDB of approximately $2 million fo r the year ended June 
30, 2017 and a risk loss of $2 million in GDB for the year ended June 30, 2016. 

4. SINKING FUND RESERVE 

As of June 30, 2017, PRIDCO holds a $ 13.7 money market deposited in a sinking 
fund reserve account with U.S. Bank Trust National Association (the Trustee), that 
will be used for the payment of bonds debt service and sinking fund requirements. 
At June 30, 2017, investments hold in the sinking fund reserve are all due w ithin 
one year. 

PRJDCO was included in the debt restructuring petition filed by the Oversight Board in 
the U.S. District Court in Puerto Rico under Title VI of PROMESA. The Title VI provision 
allows for an out-of-court debt restructuring process akin to Chapter 9 of the U.S. 
Code bankruptcy protection. Since then, PRIDCO suspended their deposits in the 
sinking fund accounts. Consequently, repayments of bonds debt have not been 
honored from the required sinking fund reserve account. As of June 30, 2017, total 
sinking fund reserve account is $4.4 m illion under the required amount. 

Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may 
have the right to call or repay obligations with or without call or prepayment 
penalties. 

5. INVESTMENT IN AND ADVANCES TO PUERTO RICO SOUTHERN INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 

Puerto Rico Southern Industrial Development Company (SIDCO) is a related 
organization engaged in promoting the development of the economy of Puerto 
Rico, with Its sole facility in Guayama, Puerto Rico that is currently leased to a 
pharmaceutical company. The rental agreement ca lls for the payment of an annual 
rent equal to the amounts due and payable by SIDCO under various notes payable 
and any other expenses incurred by SIDCO related to the facility's construction . 
During the term of the lease, the pharmaceutical company may exercise, at any 
t ime, an option to purchase the plant at a price equal to the outstanding amount 
of the notes and other plant-related obligations plus $750 thousand. Pursuant to 
the terms of the agreement, the pharmaceutical company exercised the right to 
extend the initial term of the lease for two successive renewal periods; the first 
renewal for a period of 20 year after the date of commencement of operations or the 
pharmaceutical company's tax-exemption grant, whichever date is later, and the 
second renewal for an additional period of 7 years commencing upon the expiration 
of the first renewal period. The first renewal period of the leased expi red in 2017. 
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PUERTO RICO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

At June 30, 2017, summarized information regarding SIDCO's assets follows ( in 
thousands) : 

Current assets 
Land and plant 

Total assets 

Contribution by pharmaceutical company 
Other liabilit ies 

Investment in SIDCO, net 

$ 661 
_S!Q,.illl. 

90,779 

(90,248) 
_(~) 

$ 442 

SIDCO's only activity is the leasing of this facility. During 2001, SIDCO acquired 
a land facility by entering into a promissory note In the amount of $1.6 million. 
Pursuant to the terms of the promissory note, the parties agreed upon as follows: 

• SIDCO shall not be obligated to pay the unpaid balance of principal 
hereunder, and this obligation shall become null and void, in the event the 
pharmaceutical company terminates early the lease and option agreement 
entered within. 

• In the event the pharmaceutical company or the successor lessor under the 
lease exercises the option to purchase the plant pursuant to the lease, 
then the unpaid principal balance due on the promissory note shal l be 
automatically accelerated and become due and payable In accordance 
with the lease agreement. 

It is management's opinion that the pharmaceutica l company will exercise its 
purchase option in the future. Accord ingly, the assets of SIDCO have not been blended 
within PRIDCO's fi nancial statements. 

6. RENT, LOANS AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

Rent, loans and accounts rece ivable as of June 30, 2017 consist of the following (in 
thousands): 

Rent receivable 
Loans receivable 
Other 

Tota l 

Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts 

Rent, loans and accounts rece ivable, net 

23 

$ 20,753 
10,343 

_z.,~ 

38,685 

(27,313) 

$ 11.372 



PUERTO RICO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts during the year ended June 30, 2017 
are as follows (in thousands): 

Allowance for doubtful accounts, beginning of year 
Plus: Provision for doubtful accounts 
Less: Accounts written-off 

Allowance for doubtful accounts, end of year 

7. NOTES RECEIVABLE 

$ 23,719 
10,986 
(7 .392) 

$ 27.313 

Notes receivable mostly represent the principal amount of various non-revolving 
promissory notes issued by PRIDCO to qualified exempt businesses for the purpose of 
partia lly fi nancing the acquisition of machinery and land premises and working capital 
needs. The notes agreements provide that the outstanding principal may be prepaid 
without penalty. Notes receivable as of June 30, 2017 consist of the following (in 
thousands): 

Non-revolving note receivable to qualified exempt 
business for the purpose of partially financing the 
acquisition of machinery and working capital needs, 
bearing annual interest at 4.25% during the term of 
the loan. This note is due In monthly installments of 
$5 thousand commencing on March 1, 2010 to 
September 1, 2023 and a final monthly payment of 
$4 thousand due on October 1, 2023 and is 
collateralized by a lien on machinery and equipment, 
and insurance policies covering the replacement value 
of equipment and machinery. 

Non-revolving note rece ivable to qualified exempt 
business for the purpose of partially financing the 
acquisition of machinery and work ing capital needs, 
bearing annual interest at 8% during the term of the 
loan. The note is due in monthly installments of $2 
thousand commencing on December 1, 2004 over a 20-
year period, and is collaterallzed by a lien on machinery 
and equipment and insurance policies covering the 
replacement value of equipment and machinery. 

Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts 

Notes receivable, net 

24 

$ 439 

891 

_(E,9JJ 

$ 



PUERTO RICO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE' YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

8. CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2017 consists of the following (in 
thousands): 

Capital assets not being depreci(ated : 
Land held for irrir,rove,rent 
Land on leased projects 
Construction in progress 

Total capital asset!:i not being depreciated 

Capital assets being ch:!preciated : 
Buidings and lr'npmvc,,-ents 
Machinery and equipment 
Furnit ure and vehicles 

Total capital assets being depreciated 

Less: Ace urrulated depreciation of: 
Buidings <ind i1fl>rovc1reots 
Machinery and equipment 
Furniture and vehicles 

Tt) l:al accumulated deprec iation 

T otal capital assets being depreciated, net 

Toh1I ca plt.al assets, net 

Beginning Additions 
balance /Re class 

$160,849 
72,000 
50,452 

283,301 

77/J,97& 
72,795 
13 710 

861,480 

(413,620) 
(62,567) 
(12,690) 

(488,877) 

372,603 

$ 
2,485 
6 178 

8 ,663 

50,275 
103 
:1s 

50 413 

( 17,298) 
( 1,732) 

(581) 

30,802 

Retirements 
/Rec lass 

Ending 
bc1lance 

(117) $160,732 
(564) 7:), 921 

(54,494) -~2=1=3=6-

(55,175) 

(1, 598) 
(10 1) 

(27) 

(1,726) 

3,566 

1,840 

236,789 

823,652 
72,797 
13,718 

910,167 

(427,352) 
(64,299) 
(13,271) 

(504,922) 

405,245 

$655,904 $ 39,465 $ (53,335).. ~61 2,034 

PRIDCO evaluated its capital assets for impairment and recorded a charge of 
$362,918 during the year ended June 30, 2017 because of a building lost on a fire. 

On December S, 2014, the Puerto Rico Ports Authority (Ports), another component 
unit of the Commonwealth, entered into an $8 million financing agreement with GOB 
and used the proceeds for the development of certa in repair, maintenance and 
overhaul aerospace facilities, at Rafael Hernandez Airport, in Aguadilla, Puerto Rico, 
a property of Ports. Also, the Special Development Economic Fund agreed to provide 
a $6.4 million incentive for the creation of new employment at that project, and the 
Special Incentives Fund, both fiducia ry funds of the Commonwealth, agreed to 
provide $40 million to supplement the construction of the facilities at the Airport. 

To secure the $8 million financing provided by GDB to Ports, on that same date, 
PRIDCO entered into a voluntary mortgage agreement with GOB, and mortgaged 
certain non-bonded properties, with a carrying value of $4.2 million, as collateral 
for this financing, for an amount not to exceed $10 million. The agreement 
established that PRIDCO is not a debtor or co-debtor for the Ports financing, and 
does not have any other responsibility, other than to provide these properties as 
collateral in case of default or non-compliance by Ports, up to $10 million. The 
mortgage note is due and payable on December 5, 2044. 
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(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

9, ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER ACCRUED LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities as of June 30, 201.7 consist of the 
following (in thousands): 

Accounts payable 
Accrued payroll related expenses 
Other accrued liabilities 

$2,683 
24 

5.022 

1_7.729. 

10. DUE TO AND FROM THE COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 

Amounts due from the Commonwealth as of June 30, 2017 consist of funds provided 
for granting industrial incentives to the Special Incentives Fund, a fiduciary fund of 
the Commonwealth (the Fund), of $4 1.7 million with maturity date on June 30, 2040. 
Prior to June 30, 2004, the Fund received advances from a line of credit established 
with the GDB through an agreement between the bank and PRIDCO, the Fund's 
administrator. Therefore, the outstanding balance of the line of credit was recorded 
in PRIDCO's fi nancial statements and amounted to $4 1. 7 million as of June 30, 
2017. Repayments of these notes shall be provided by CO FINA through legislative 
appropriations. 

Rums of Puerto Rico Fund, Special Incentives Fund, and Special Fund for Economic 
Development are administered by PRIDCO on behal f of the Commonwealth. 
Management has concluded that they do not constitute funds of PRIDCO. 
Accordingly, they are not presented in t he accompanying basic fi nancial statements. 

Amounts due to the Commonwealth as of June 30, 201. 7 consist of the following (in 
thousands): 

Payable to 

Rums of Puerto Rico Fund 

Puerto Rico Department of 
Economic Development 

Purpose 

Operating advances 

Management fees 

Amount 

$ 7,428 

7.159 

$1,<1.,.5.82 

During fiscal year 2016-2017 PRIDCO and the Puerto Rico Department of Economic 
Development (the Department) reached an agreement for restructuring the amount 
due for management fees from previous years. The Department agreed to forgive 
one-third (1/3) of the amount due of approximately $3 mill ion. Also, PRIDCO appl ied 
to the debt the amount of $3 million of certain administrative expenses paid on b'ehalf 
of the Department . The remaining balance at the agreement date of $10 million is 
payable in 23 installments of $272 thousand beginning on August 19, 2016 and a fi nal 
payment of $4 million due not later than October 19, 2018. 
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(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

11, LONG-TERM DEBT ACTIVITY 

Long-term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2017 is as follows ( in thousands): 

Due 
Beginning Ending within 

balance Additions Accretions Reductions balance one year 

Dom.is 1.J(ly&ble $ 162,625 * s 5 (10, 065) $152,560 $ 7, 333 
Pio!';: A<:<":1\'!rP.d d tsc:ount 5,172 562 5, 1:i-1 7,937 
Less: Bonds discount {25t.) 15 (240) {15) 

Ror'lcl$ p;iy;ihlP., net 167,542 562 ( 10,0>0) I SA,1151 I 0, 2S0 

Line of credit ;.,nd notes ~&y<'ble to GOO 77, 112 77,772 
LO&ns aod notes p<1yat>le t0'1,173 ( 9,613) 94,560 19,957 
Obligation~ uOOP.r c:apiral leases 311 196 {:, 16) 291 1.17 

T ().t;il $ 349,798 i 19G i 562 i {19,879! $330,677 $301324 

Bonds Payable 

As required by the Trust Indenture dated July 1, 1964, as amended, PRIDCO has 
pledged and assigned to the Trustee the gross revenue from certain properties 
(known as trusteed properties) for the payment of the Revenue Refunding Bonds 
and General-Purpose Revenue Bonds, Serles 1991 to 1997. In case the gross 
revenue from trusteed propert ies and the amounts deposited with the Trustee are 
insufficient, PRIDCO shall deposit with the Trustee the amount necessary to meet t he 
debt service requirements. 

During fiscal year 1998, PRIDCO issued approximately $150 mill ion in revenue 
refunding and general-purpose revenue bonds. The proceeds of the fiscal year 1998 
bond issuance destined to refund the previous outstanding bonds were used to 
purchase U.S. government securities. Those securities were deposited in an 
irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service 
payments. As a result, all the Series prior to 1997, except for the Series 1991 
serial and capital appreciation bonds, were considered defeated and the liabi lity 
for those bonds was considered extinguished and has been removed from the 
accompanying basic fi nancial statements. 

Revenue Refunding Bonds and General-Purpose Revenue Bonds outstanding as of 
June 30, 2017 are as follows (in thousands): 

Series A 1997, term bonds, 6.70%, due on July 1, 2021 

Series 2003 General-Purpose Revenue Bonds: 
Series bonds, 5.10% due on July 1, 2017 

Serles bonds, 5. 15% due on July 1, 2018 
Capital appreciation bonds, implicit annual interest rates of 
5.15% to 5.20%, due on July 1, 2017 and 2018 
Term bonds, 5.20%, due on July 1, 2023 
Term bonds, 5.25%, due on July 1, 2028 

Less: Current maturities 
Bonds payable, noncurrent 
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$16,795 

1,170 

1,225 

11,029 

48,925 
78.910 

158,054 

(10,250) 

$147 804 



PUERTO RICO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Series 2003 of the capital appreciation bonds will accrete to a maximum of $ 11.6 
million, through their corresponding maturity dates. The annual debt service 
requirements to maturity, including principal and interest, for bonds payable as of 
June 30, 2017 are as follows (in thousands): 

Year endjna June 30. Princi12al Interest Tota l 

2018 $ 10,250 $ 10,729 $ 20,979 

2019 11,007 10,657 21,664 

2020 11,135 7,012 18,147 

2021 11,785 6,367 18, 152 

2022 12,465 5,684 18,149 

2023-2026 56,875 15,727 72,602 
2027- 2029 41.961 3.362 ~..:m. 

155,478 isg s3a ,$215,016 

Plus: Accreted discount 2,801 
Less: Unamortized bond discount _ (.225) 

Bonds payable, net i15a,05"1 

line of Credit and Notes Payable to Government Development Bank for Puerto 
Rico (GOB) 

Line of cred it and notes payable to GDB as of June 30, 2017 are comprised as follows 
(in thousands): 

Non-revolv ing line of credit up to $75 mil lion with GDB (restructured as 
of November 24, 2014) to provide for the payment of expenses related to 
the voluntary separation and early reti rement plans, bearing interest at 
prime plus 1.5% with a floor of 6%, due November 1, 2024 (6% as of 
June 30, 2017). PRIDCO identified several non-t rusted properties to be 
disposed of for the repayment of this debt and placed them as collatera l. $ 36,ll.9 

Notes payable that were used to grant Industrial incentives under the 
Special I ncentives Fund, a fund of the Commonwealth, which is 
administered by PRIDCO. Repayments of these notes are provided by the 
Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing Corporation (COFINA) and the 
Commonwealth under legislative appropriation. The notes are due on 
June 30, 2040 and bear interest at 7%. Since these lines of credit are 
payable only from resources to be provided by COFINA and 
Commonwealth appropriations, PRIDCO has recorded an amount due 
from Commonwealth for the same amount. (See Notes 2 and 10) 41.653 

Line of credit, and notes payable to GDB ~,772 

For t he year ended June 30, 2017. PRIDCO only received appropriations from the 
Commonwealth for the partial payment of interest accrued under line of credit and did 
not receive appropriations for the payment of the notes principal. Due to this situation, 
as of June 30, 2017 PRIDCO recogn ized an in terest payable of $8.76 mill ion. 
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Loans and notes payable to commercial banks 

Loans, and notes payable to commercial banks consist of the following ( in 
thousands) : 

Term-loan payable in 180 monthly instal lments of $268 
thousands including interest with a balloon payment for the 
remainder balance plus interest due in June 2022. The loan 
bears annual interest at 6.0585%. 

Term- loan payable in 138 monthly installments of $208 
thousands Including interest with a balloon payment for the 
remainder balance plus interest due in June 2022. The loan 
bears annual interest at 5.375%. 

Term-loan payable in 180 monthly installments of $137 
thousands including interest and due in March 2018. The loan 
bears annual interest at 6.4785%. 

Term-loan payable in 179 monthly installments of $118 
thousands including interest, bearing annual interest at 5.46% 
and a final balloon payment due in October 2019. The loan is 
jointly and severally guaranteed by PRIICO. 

Non-revolving line of credit with 24 interest only payments then 
converted Into a term-loan payable in 216 monthly installments 
of $110 thousands including interest, and due In December 
2024. The loan bears annual interest at 6.061 % . 

Non-revolv ing line of credit with 24 Interest only payments then 
converted into a term-loan payable in 216 monthly installments 
of $72 thousands Including interest ancl due in December 2024. 
The loan bears annual Interest at 6.25%. 

Promissory note payable in 180 monthly payments of $229 
thousands including interests and due in December 2030. The 
note bears annual interest at 6 .25%. 

Note payable in monthly installments of $139 thousands 
including interest with due date of December 16, 2030. The 
note bears annual Interest at 4.65%. 

Note payable in monthly payments of $6 thousands including 
interest with due date of August 18, 2019. The note bears 
annual interest at 5.99%. 

Less: Current maturit ies 

Loans and notes payable to commercial banks, noncurrent 
portion 
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$ 14,178 

11,059 

10,731 

3,322 

8,079 

5,181 

25,009 

16,859 

142 

94,560 

$74 603 
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Debt service requ irements for the loans and notes payable to commercial banks are 
as follows (in thousands): 

Fiscal Year 
Ending 

June 30, 

2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 

2023-2031 

Total 

Due to Commercia l Banks 
Principa I Interest Total 

$19,957 $ 
9,771 
9,606 
9,402 

10,590 
35,234 

$94,560 $ 

5, 116 
4,039 
3,463 
2,922 
2,357 
8,075 

25,97 2 

$ 25,073 
13,810 
13,069 
12,324 
12,947 
43,309 

$ 120,532 

PRIDCO is subject to compliance with certain covenants on its loans and notes payable 
with three commercial banks. During the year ended June 30, 2017, PRIDCO did 
not comply with some of those covenants. 

On June 30, 2016, PROMESA was enacted to bring stabil ity to Puerto Rico's economy 
and establish a framework for Puerto Rico to restructure its debt. PROMESA created a 
new and unique remedy speci fically designed to allow the Commonwealth and other 
territories to restructure their debts, using procedures that combine elements of 
t raditional Chapter 9 and Chapter 11 Bankrupt Act of the United States of America. 
PROMESA provided an automat ic stay of all li tigations against the Commonwealth and 
its instrumentalities and any other judicial, administrative or other action or proceeding 
to enforce or collect claims unt il February 15, 2017. PROMESA provides two 
mechanisms to restructure the Commonwealth's debt, Title III, a bankruptcy like 
procedure and Tit le VI, a mechanism to forma lize agreements negotiated between the 
Commonwealth and its creditors out-of-court. Moreover, the way PROMESA is written, 
Title VI negotiations are indispensable for eliglbill ty to Ti tle III. Title VI of PROMESA 
provides some of the framework for negotiation and Sections 206(a) and 405(n) 
establish that the Commonwealth will conduct these negotiations. On September 30, 
2016, the Oversight Board designated the Commonwealth and certain other territorial 
Instrumentalities as covered entities under PROMESA. PRIDCO was included under the 
Commonwealth through the Department of Commerce and Economic Development 
and is currently negotiating Its obligations under Title VI. 

Net Pension liability 

This amount represents the proportionate share of the collective pension liability of all 
employers for benefits provided through the Commonwealth's pension plan. The 
liabili ty balance recorded by PRIDCO as of June 30, 2017 amounted to $181 m illion. 
(Refer to Note 14). 

Obligations under capital lease 

PRIDCO finances the acquisition of certain office equipment through capita l leases 
from various financial Institutions. Capital leases outstanding as of June 30, 2017, 
are payable in monthly installments of principal and interest ranging from $2 
hundred to $2 thousand through the year 2021. The obligations under capital leases 
are secured by the corresponding office equipment and bear annual interest rates 
ranging from 4.00% to 5.22% in 2017. 
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Debt service requirements of future minimum payments under capital lease obligations 
are as follows (in thousands): 

Fiscal Year-Ending June 30. 

2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 

Tota l m inimum lease payments 
Less: Amount representing interest 

Present value of minimum lease payments 
Less: current maturities 

Obligations under capital lease, non current 

$123 
107 

52 
21 

~ 

307 
__ti§) 

12. COMPENSATED ABSENCES 

13. 

Compensated absences as of June 30, 2017 are as follows: 

Beginning Net Ending Due w ithin 
balance change balance one year 

Vacation accrual $ 1,558 $ ( 370) $ 1,188 $ 904 
Sick leave benefits 3,520 (965) 2,555 635 

$ 5,078 $ ( 1,335) $ 3,743 $ 1, 539 

VOLUNTARY TERMINATION BENEFITS 

The Legislature of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico approved two retirement 
incentive plans for all regular employees of the central government agencies and 
certa in public corporations under Act No. 70 of July 2, 2010 and Act No. 211 of 
December 8, 2015, as amended by Act No. 170 of August 9, 2016. Act No. 70 Included 
early retirement incent ives for employees not eligible for retirement and retirement 
Incentives for employees who are eligible. Under this plan, employees cou ld select 
one of three options as follows: 

Article 4(a) provides economic incent ives based on the following parameters: 

Years of Service 
in Public Sector 

Up to 1 year 
From 1 year and 1 
day up to 3 years 

From 3 years and 1 
day and up 

31 

Incentive Gross 
Amount 

1 month of salary 

3 months of salary 

6 months of sa lary 
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Article 4(b) provides early retirement, for employees meeting certain number of years 
of service criteria (between 15 and 29 years) and will receive a higher pension benefit 
rate than they would otherwise be entitled to receive based on their current years of 
service, but lower than what they would have been entitled to under full vesting 
requirements. Annuity pension payment Is based on the following parameters: 

Credited Years 
of Service 

15 
16 
17 
18 
19 

20 to 29 

Pension Payment 
{As a 0/o of salary) 

37.50% 
40.00% 
42.50% 
45.00% 
47.50% 
50.00% 

PRIDCO will be responsible for making the applicable employer contributions to the 
Employees Retirement System, as well as making the payments to cover the annuity 
payments to the employees opting for the early retirement, unt il both the years of 
service and age requirements fo r full vesting would have occurred, at which t ime the 
applicable Ret irement System will continue making the annuity payments. 

Employees selecting options 4(a) or 4(b) will be entitled to receive full payment of 
healthcare plan benefits for a period of up to 12 months or the date that the employee 
is eligible for a healthcare plan benefit offered by another employer, wh ichever occurs 
first. 

Article 4(c) provides eligible employees that have 30 years of credited services 
contributing to the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico Retirement System and request to 
start receiving their pension benefits, will be entitled to receive the economic incentive 
awarded on article 4(a) but not entitled to the incentives awarded on article 4(b). 
Employees who have the requ ired retirement age but have not achieved the years of 
credited services contributing to the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico Retirement System 
will be entit led to an economic incent ive of up to 6 months of salary to cover for the 
years of service not cred ited. At June 30, 2017 voluntary termination benefits granted 
under Act Num. 70 were discounted at present value. 

Act No. 211, as amended, and commonly known as Voluntary Pre -Retirement Program, 
aims to provide incentives for employees of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, who 
have begun to quote for the Puerto Rico Retirement System before April 1, 1990 or 
who having begun to quote after that date have paid services accrued prior to April 1, 
1990 without having received a refund of their contributions and have a minimum of 
twenty years of service quoted under the structure of benefits of the Act No. 447, 
supra. 

Incentives under Act No. 211, as amended, include employee's compensation 
equivalent to sixty percent of their average remuneration as of December 31, 2015 
while participating in the program; the settlement of payment of licenses of vacation 
and sick leave, exempt of contributions and limited to a maximum established by Law. 
It also provides fo r the payment of the employer contribution to Social Security and 
Medicare, to either maintain the coverage of the health plan or to keep on receiv ing 
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the employer contribution to health plans under same terms and conditions as if 
employed for up to a term of two years. Even more, PRIDCO should continue making 
both employee and employer contributions to the Retirement System, which wil l 
ensure an increase in employee's future retirement annuity to at least fifty percent of 
Its average remunera tion at June 30, 2015. 

Voluntary termination benefits, as detailed below, are discounted at a rate of 1.013%, 
which is the average of the prevailing annual Interest rate over outstanding certificates 
of deposits as of June 30, 2017: 

Act No. 70 
Act No. 211 

$ 

Beginning 
b;i l;ince Net change 

7,512 $ ( 3,546} $ 

6 984 

Encling 
ba lance 

Due within 
one year 

3,966 $ 
6,984 

4 27 
1,103 

$ 7 d1l_ ;i;.$===3'=,4;,;;3;,;;;8 $ 10, 9 SO ~$=....;l;.1,,;;;S,;;;3;;0 

14. RETIREMENT PLAN 

Plan description 

PRIDCO is a participating employer in a retirement plan administered by the 
Employee's Ret irement System of the Government of Puerto Rico and its 
Instrumentalities (ERS). ERS covers employees of certain publ ic corporations not 
having their own retirement systems, employees of the Fire and Police Departments 
of Puerto Rico, all regular full-time public employees working for t he executive and 
leg islative branches of the Commonwealth, and the municipalities of Puerto Rico. Prior 
to July l, 2013 the system operated under the following benefits structures: 

• Act No. 447 of May 15, 1951 (Act No. 447) effective on January 1, 1952 for 
members hired up to March 3 1, 1990, 

• Act No. 1 of February 16, 1990 (Act No. 1) for members hired on or after Apri l 
1, 1990 and ending on or before December 31, 1999, 

• Act No. 305 of September 24, 1999, (Act No. 305), which amended Act No. 
447 and Act No. 1, for members hired from January 1, 2000 up to June 3, 2013. 

Employees under Act No. 447 and Act No. 1 are participants of a cost-sharing multiple 
employer defined benefit plan. Act No. 305 members are participants under a pension 
prog ram known as System 2000, a hybrid defined contribution plan. Under System 
2000 there was a pool of pension assets invested by the ERS, together with those of 
the current defined benefit plan. Benefits at retirement age were not guaranteed by 
the Commonwealth and were subjected to the total accumulated balance of the savings 
account. Effective July 1, 2013, Act No. 3 of 2013 (Act No. 3} amends the provisions 
of the different benefits structures under the ERS. Act No. 3 moves all participants 
(employees} under the defined benefit pension plans (Act No. 447 and Act No. 1) and 
the defined contribution plan (System 2000 ) to a new defined contribution hybrid plan. 
Contributions are mainta ined by each participant in individual accounts. Credits to the 
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Individual accounts include (1) contributions by all members of ERS Act No. 447 and 
Act No. 1 defined benefit pension plans after June 30, 2013; (2) the retirement savings 
account as of June 30, 2013 of System 2000 participants and, (3) the investment y ield 
for each semester of the fiscal year. 

Benefits provided 

Eligibility for retirement .. Members who were elig ible to retire as of June 30, 2013 
continue to be eligible to retire at any t ime under the provisions of the applicable law. 
In addition, Act No. 447 members who attained 30 years of credited service by 
December 31, 2013 are elig ible to retire at any time. 

Under Act No. 447 and Act No. 1 public officers in high risk posit ions (state and 
municipal police, firefighters and custody officials) who were not eligible to reti re as of 
June 30, 2013 and did not attain 30 years of credited service by December 31, 2013 
are elig ible to retire from active service upon attainment of age 55 wi th 30 years of 
cred ited service, System 2000 employees upon attainment of age 55, and Act No. 3 
employees upon reach ing 58 years. 

After the approval of Act No. 3, members who were not elig ible to ret ire as of June 30, 
2013 and did not attain 30 years of credited service by December 31, 2013, are eligible 
to retire upon attainment the following new retirement eligibi lity requirements: ( 1) Act 
No. 447 regular employees upon atta ining a range between 59 to 61 years (depending 
of date of birth) and 10 years of creditable service, (2) Act No. 1 employees upon 
attaining 65 years with 10 years of creditable service, (3) System 2000 regular 
employees upon attaining a range between 61 to 65 years (depending of date of birth) 
and, ( 4) Act No. 3 employees hired after June 30, 2017 upon reaching 67 years. 

Accrued benefits. All members are ent itled to a lifetime annui ty based on the 
annultized value of the balance in the hybrid individual contribution account at the 
t ime of the retirement calculated based on a factor that will incorporate the indiv idual's 
life expectancy and a rate of return. For Act No. 447 and Act No. 1 participants will 
receive a pension at retirement age equivalent to what they have accrued under Act 
No. 447 and Act No. 1 up to June 30, 2013, plus the lifetime annuity corresponding to 
contributions made to the Ind iv idual account on July 1, 2013 and forward. Act No. 447 
participants, except police and mayors, may elect to coord inate coverage with Social 
Security benefits (Coordinated Plan). Under this option, participants are subject to a 
benefit recalculation upon attainment of the Social Security retirement age. For all 
members, If the balance of the defined contribution individual account is less than 
$10,000, the amount shall be paid as a lump-sum instead of an annuity. 

r:&.mai1/sory retirement'. All Act No. 447 and Act No. 1 public officers in high risk 
positions must retire upon attainment of age 58 and 30 years of credited service. A 
two-year extension may be requested by the member f rom the Superintendent of the 
Puerto Rico Police, the Chief of the Fire Department or supervising authority, as 
applicable. 

Contributions 

Effective July 1, 2013, Act No. 3 Is the authority under which obligations to contribute 
to the Plan by the Plan members, employers, and other contributing ent ities are 
established. 
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Members. All participants are required to contribute 10°!.) of gross salary. However, 
Act No. 447 participants who selected the Coordination Plan (only with benefits 
coordinated with socia l security benefits, as described above) are required to 
contribute 10% of gross salary effective July 1, 2015. Members may voluntari ly make 
additional contributions to their defined contribut ion Individual account. 

Pa'ieoll•based employer contribution. PRIDCO contributed 2.4 million (15.525% of 
gross sa lary) for fiscal year 2016-2017. This amount represented the 100% of the 
required contribution for the corresponding year. 

Supplemental contribution. In accordance with Act No. 3 of 2013, effective July 1, 
2013 the ERS will receive a supplemental contribution of $2,000 ($800 for the pension 
plan and $1,200 to the post-employment healthcare benefits plan) each fiscal year for 
each pensioner who was previously benefitting as an Act No. 447 or Act No. 1 member 
whi le an active employee. This supplemental contribution will be paid by certain public 
corporations with own treasuries (including PRIDCO), the Commonwealth 's General 
Fund for central government and certain public corporations without own t reasuries or 
municipa lit ies for their former employees. 

Additional uniform coatdbution. Act No. 32 of 2013, provide fo r an Additional Uniform 
Contribution (AUC) which will be financed by all participating employers { including 
PRIDCO) of the ERS. Beginning with the 2014-2015 until 2032-2033 fiscal year, the 
AUC wil l be the uniform contribution certified by the external actuary of the ERS at 
least 120 days prior to the start of each fiscal year, as necessary to avoid having the 
projected gross assets of the ERS, during any subsequent fisca l year, to fall below $1 
bill ion. The ERS will determine the amount of AUC to be billed and paid by each 
employer during each fisca l year. Commonwealth laws provide for a subsidy of the 
AUC obligation, applicab le to all participating employers { including PRIDCO) of the ERS 
that the Puerto Rico Office of Management and Budget (0 MB) determine do not have 
financial capability to pay the AUC obligation. For fiscal year 2016-2017 t he Company's 
AUC obligation amounted to $2.4 mil lion. The AUC was eliminated effective July 1, 
2017. 

Net Pension Liability, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and 
Deferred I nflows of Resources Related to Pension 

On November 2, 2018, the ERS issued an audited report for the year ended June 30, 
2016, in accordance with GASB Statement No. 68, providing Information about pension 
amounts by employer and the corresponding employer allocation percentage. For 
purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred out flows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pension, and pension expense, the balances 
have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the ERS. PRIDCO 
disclosed the below ment ioned information based on the audited data reported by ERS 
and the ERS June 30, 2016 Actuarial Valuation Report. 

At June 30, 2017, PRIDCO reported a liabil ity of $181 million for its proportionate share 
of the net pension liabil ity. The collective net pension liability which amounts to $38 
bil lion was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2015 that was rolled 
forward to June 30, 2016 and assuming no gains or losses. PRIDCO'S proportion of 
the net pension liabil ity was based on a project ion of PRlDCO share of contributlons to 
the pension plan relat ive to the projected contributions of all ERS participants, 
actuarially determined. At June 30, 2016, PRIDCO's proportion was 0.47961 %. 
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For the year ended June 30, 2017, PRIDCO recognized pension expense of $9 mill ion. 
Pension expense represents t he change in the net pension liabil ity during the 
measurement period, adjusted for actual contributions and the deferred recognition of 
changes in investment gain/loss, actuarial gain/loss, actuarial assumptions or method, 
and plan benefits. At June 30, 2017, PRIDCO reported deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources (In 
thousands): 

Deferred Deferred 
Amortization Outflows of Inflows of 

Period Resources Resources 

Difference between expected and 
adual experience S years $ 148 $ 

Chang~s in assumptions 5 years 27,579 

Difference between expected and 
actual experience 6 years 2,482 

Difference between projected and 
actual eamings on pension plan 
investrrents 5 years 979 

Total to be armrtlzecl 27,727 3,461 

Changes in proportion - employer 
spP.c:ific: amounts 7,077 

Audited amounts as re.ported by ERS 34,804 :l,461 

PRIDCO's cont rlbutlons subsequent t o 
measurement date 6,011 

$ 40 8 15 $ 3,461 

The $6 million reported as deferred outflows of resources related to PRIDCO's 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction 
of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. Other amounts 
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 
to pensions will be recognized as pension expense In future fiscal years based on the 
average expected remaining service lives of all plan participants, in the case of 
projected and actual investment earnings in a 5-year period and for differences 
between expected and actual experience in a 6-year period. 

Actuarial methods and assumptions 

The actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial methods and 
assumptions: 

Actuarial methods: 

Valuation date 

Measurement date 

Actuarial cost method 

July 1, 2015, projected forward to June 30, 2016. 

June 30, 2016 

Entry age norm a I 
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Asset-valuation method 

Actuarial assumptions: 

Compensation increases 

Inflation rate 

I nvestment rate of retu rn 

Discount rate 

Municipal bond rate 

Mortality 

Market value of assets 

3.0% per year, no compensation increases are assumed 
unt il July 1, 2021 as a result of Act No. 66 and the current 
general economy 

2.50% 

6.55%, net of investment expenses 

2.85% 

2.85%, based on Bond Buyer General Obligation 
20-Bond Municipal Bond Index 

Pre-retirement mortality: 

For general employees not covered under Act No. 127, 
RP-2014 Employee Mortality rates for males and fema les 
adjusted to reflect Mortality Improvement Scale, MP-
2016 from the 2006 base year and projected forward 
using MP-2016 on generational basis. For members 
covered under Act No. 127, RP-2014 Employee Mortality 
Rates are assumed with blue collar adjustments for 
males and females adjusted to reflect Mortality 
Improvement Scale MP-2016 from the 2006 base year 
and projected forward using MP-2016 on generational 
basis. 

As generational tables, they reflect mortality 
improvements both before and after the measurement 
date. 

For employees covered by Act No. 127 while in active 
service a 100% of death was assumed to be 
occupational. 

Post-retirement healthy_JIJortality: 

Rates which vary by gender are assumed for healthy 
retirees and beneficiaries based on a study of plan's 
experience from 2007 to 2012 and updated expectations 
regarding future mortal ity improvement. The 2010 base 
rates are equal to 92% of the rates from the UP-1994 
Mortality Table for Males and 95% of the rates from the 
UP-1994 Mortality Table for Females, both projected 
from 1994 to 2010 using Scale AA. The base rates are 
proj ected using Mortality Improvement Scale MP-2016 
on a generational basis. As a generational table, it 
reflects mortal ity improvements both before and after 
t he measurement date. 
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Post-retirement disabled ..morta I ity: 

Rates which vary by gender are assumed for disabled 
retirees based on a study of plan's experience from 2007 
to 2012 and updated expectations regarding future 
mortality improvement. The 2010 base rates are equal 
to 105% of the rates from the UP-1994 Mortality Table 
for Males and 115% of the rates from the UP-1994 
Mortality Table for Females. The base rates are projected 
using Mortality I mprovement Scale MP-2016 on a 
generational basis. As a generational table, it reflects 
mortality Improvements both before and after the 
measurement date. 

Long-term Rate of Return on Investments 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension benefits investments was 
determined in accordance with the asset allocation of the portfolio that was adopted 
by the ERS Board during December 2013 and the actuary's capital market assumptions 
as of June 30, 2016. In addition, the assumption reflects that loans to members 
comprise approximately 50% of the portfolio and have an approximate return of 9.1 % 
with no volati lity. The long-term expected rate of return on pension benefit 
investments of 6.55% as of June 30, 2016 is equal to the highest debt service of the 
senior pension funding bonds payable which range from 5.85% per annum to 6.55% 
per year. 

The pension plan's policy regarding allocation of invested assets is established and 
may be amended by the ERS Board. Plan assets are managed on a total return basis 
with a long-term objective of achieving and maintaining a positive Impact on the ERS 
fi nancial condition for the benefits provided through the pension programs. The 
following was the asset allocation policy adopted by the ERS Board as of June 30, 
2016: 

Long-term 
Target expected rate 

Asset Class Allocation_ of return 
Domestic Equity 25% 6.4% 

International 
Equity 10% 6.7% 

Fixed Income 64% 6.3% 

Cash 1% 3.0% 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension benefits was determined using a 
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of 
return ( expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and infla tion) are 
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the 
long- term expected rate of retu rn by weighting the expected future real rates of return 
by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected Inflation. 
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Discount rate 

The asset basis for the date of depletion is the ERS's fiduciary net position (the gross 
assets plus deferred outflows of resources less the gross liabilities, including the senior 
pension funding bonds payable, less deferred inflows of resources). On this basis, the 
fiduciary net position became negative in the fisca l year 2015 and accordingly no 
projection of date of depletion is needed. The plan's fiduciary net position was not 
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current 
active and inactive employees. Therefore, the tax-free municipal bond index (Bond 
Buyer General Obligation 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index) was applied to all periods of 
projected benefits payments to determine the total pension liability. The d iscount rate 
was 2.85% and 3.80% as of June 30, 2016 and July 1, 2015, respectively. The date 
of depletion projection of the actuarial report does not include any amounts from the 
additional uniform contribution required by Act No. 32 because of actual fiscal and 
budgetary financial difficulties, cont inued budget deficits and liquidity risks of the 
Commonwealth and the municipalities, and in the event that their financial condition 
does not improve in the near term. 

Sensitivity of PRIDCO's proportionate share of the net pension liability to 
changes In the discount rate 

The following presents PRIDCO's net pension liability (in thousands) as of June 30, 
2017, ca lculated using the discount rate of 2.85%, as well as what the net pension 
liability would be if it is calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage- point 
lower (1.85%) or 1-percentage-point higher (3.85%) than the current rate: 

Net pension liability 

At 1% 
decrease 

(l.,85%) 

$207,378 

Pension Plan fiduciary net position 

At current 
discount rate 

(2.85%)_ 

$180,808 

At Hf, 
increase 
(3.85%) 

$159,172 

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position as of June 30, 2016 
is available in the separately issued ERS's financial report. 

15. COMMITMENTS 

Construction Program 

As of June 30, 2017, PRIDCO estimates to Invest approximately $2 million for 
construction, land acquisition, and development of building facilities. 

Other Commitments 

PRIDCO has only administrative responsibilities with regards to the Special 
Incentives Fund, Special Fund Economic Development, and Rums of Puerto Rico Fund. 
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PRIDCO maintains a joint agreement with the University of Puerto Rico for the 
administration of the Bioprocess Development and Tra ining Complex (BDTC) in 
MayagUez, Puerto Rico. Under this agreement, PRIDCO constructed a modern 
building with state· of- the-art facilities for rental to pharmaceutical and high-end 
technological industries with research and development projects. PRIDCO is 
therefore renting the building to BDTC. 

PRIDCO maintains a joint interagency agreement along with the Puerto Rico 
Tourism Company (PRTC). Both entities agreed to provide $1 mi llion each for the 
Office of Land Use Planning. PRIDCO is responsible for the purchase of office 
equipment as well as professional services necessary for the operations of said 
office. In prior year, PRIDCO received $1 million from PRTC and total expenditures 
amounted to $672 thousand. PRTC did not make any contribution during the year 
ended June 30, 2017. 

PRIDCO leases office facilities in New York City under an operating lease with a 
third party expiring in the year 2022. Rent expense including common area 
maintenance, taxes and other charges amounted to approximately $412 thousand 
for the year ended June 30, 2017. This office space Is shared with GOB and Rums 
of Puerto Rico aiming towards the presence of the Commonwealth in one of the most 
important cities of the world. PRIDCO charges rent to the previously mentioned 
governmental agencies based on space occupancy allocation. Th is contract was 
subsequently cancelled on August 24, 2017. 

16, CONTINGENCIES 

PRIDCO is a defendant in a number of legal proceedings arising in the normal course 
of business, including but not limited to labor, torts, and breach of contract. 
Management believes that it has a reasonable possibility of prevailing in these cases. 
Contingency reserves as of June 30, 2017 amounted to $6.8 mill ion separately 
disclosed as legal liabil ities. 

17, POLLUTION REMEDIATION OBUGATIONS 

The nature of PRIDCO tenants' manufacturing operations are highly susceptib le to 
pollution obligations. PRIDCO, as owner, has the financial responsibility for cleanup 
costs and pollution remediation process in case of tenants' default. Pollution 
remediation obligations, which includes contamination, are obligations incurred to 
address the current or potential detrimental effects of existing pollution by 
participating in remediation activities such as site assessments and cleanups but 
excludes pollution prevention or control obligations with respect to current operations, 
and future pollution remed iation activities that are requi red upon reti rement of an 
asset. At June 30, 2017, PRIDCO's liabi lity for pollution remediation amounted to 
$14.4 million. 

Pollution remediation is a process that can last several years and involves different 
stages. PRIDCO has called former or current tenants to make them accountable for 
cleanup or pollution remed iation costs; otherwise PRIDCO has assumed the 
responsibility. Notwithstanding, PRIDCO has been considered a responsible party in 
a lawsuit, at Initial stage, and in several claims, at the regu lating agencies level, 
related to pollution remediation obligations. Federal Environmental Protection 
Agency ( EPA), the Puerto Rico Department of Environment and Natural Resources 
(DENR) and the Puerto Rico Environmental Quality Board (EQB) have the oversight 
and the enforcement responsibility in cases of pollution . Federal claims are covered 
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pursuant the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act 
of 1980 (CERCLA, or commonly known as Superfund), w hich provides broad Federal 
aut hority to respond d irectly to releases or threatened releases of hazardous 
substances that may endanger public health or the environment, and the Resource 
Conservation Recovery Act (RCRA) of 1976, which provides for proper disposal of 
solid waste and hazardous waste. Agencies are authori zed by law to identi fy 
parties responsible for the pollu t ion of sites and compel the parties to remediate 
it. 

Experience has shown that uncertainties associated with environmental remed iation 
contingencies are pervasive and often resu l t in wide ranges of outcomes. 
Estimates developed in the early stages of remediation can vary significantly. A 
finite estimate of costs does not normally become fixed and determinable at a specific 
t ime. Rather, the costs associated with environmental remed iation become estimable 
over a series of events and activities that help to frame and define a liability. 

Estimates of the amount and t iming of future costs of environmental remediation 
requirements are by their nature imprecise because of the continuing evolution of 
envi ronmental laws and regu latory requirements, the avai lability and application of 
technology, the identification of presently unknown remediation sites, and the 
allocation of costs among the potent ially responsible parties. Based upon information 
presently available, such future costs are not expected to have a material effect on 
PRIDCO's financial position. However, such costs could be material to the results of 
operations in a future year . 

18. RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Treasury Department of PRIDCO is responsible of assuring that PRIDCO's 
property is properly Insured. Annually, the Treasury Department in conjunction with 
other departments of PRIDCO compiles the information of all property owned and its 
respective market value. After evaluating this information, it is submitted to the Area 
of Public Insurance at the Department of the Treasury of the Commonwealth, which is 
responsib le for purchasing all property and casualty insurance policies of all 
governmental instrumentalities. Settled claims have not exceeded commercial 
coverage in any of the past three fisca l years. 

19. RESTATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

The following table disclosed the net change in the net position at beginning of year 
as previously reported in the fi nancial statements. The beginning balance has been 
restated as follows: 

Description 

Net position at July 1, 2016, as previously reported 

Impact of implementation of GASB Statements No.68 and 
No. 71: 
Recognition of beginning net pension liability 
Recognition of deferred outflows of resources for 

pension contributions made after measurement date 
Recognition of deferred inflows of resources 

Net position at July 1, 2016, as restated 
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Net Position 

$355,950 

(161,881) 

30,085 
(2,807) 

$22.l,3_4.Z 
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20, SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

PRIDCO has evaluated subsequent events through February 26, 2019, the date on 
which the financial statements were available to be issued. Management believes that 
the following events should be disclosed: 

a. Hurricanes Irma and Maria 

On September 2017 Puerto Rico was impacted by Hurricanes Irma and Maria, major 
category 4 hurricanes, causing a level of widespread destruction in many areas 
including infrastructure, housing, environment, public and private property, and 
disrupting the Commonwealth and PRIDCO's operations. Hurricanes Irma and Maria 
severely damaged 9% and 74% of PRIDCO's property, respectively. PRIDCO 
performed significant mitigation and recovery efforts financed by operating funds. 

PRIDCO estimated all damages suffered in about $187 million. At present, 
management has submitted cla ims to PRIDCO's and tenants' insurance companies, 
and evidence of recovery related costs to the Federal Emergency Management Agency 
(FEMA) for reimbursement through public assistance grants. The insurance company 
advanced the amount of $1.8 mi llion for damage mitigation purposes but tota l amount 
of insurance recovery has not been determined. 

Since the U.S. President approved a disaster declaration for Puerto Rico, federa l 
disaster assistance has been made avai lable to supplement the local recovery efforts 
in the affected areas. Therefore, management is working on the application for funds 
awarded under the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) to 
help Puerto Rico In recovering from Hurricanes I rma and Marfa. These recovery funds 
awarded wil l be provided through HUD's Community Development Block Grant -
Disaster Recovery (CDBG-DR) Program and will support long-term recovery of 
seriously damaged infrastructure, housing, and local businesses in Puerto Rico. 
CDBG-DR grants support a variety of disaster recovery activities including business 
assistance, economic revitalization, and Infrastructure repair. 

b. Capital lease agreement converted into a master operating lease 
agreement 

Effective December 18, 2017, assets held under capital lease agreement were 
refinanced under a new master lease agreement due on December 18, 2022. The 
new agreement provides for the substitution of 60-month old equipment for new 
equipment without altering the total monthly minimum lease payment from previous 
lease agreement. On March 27, 2018, the contract was amended to limit maximum 
charge for copies made in excess of contracted number for t he term of the new 
agreement to $21,300. A second amendment was signed on May 25, 2018 to: (a) 
substitute all the 60-month equipment old fo r new equipment, (b) reduce monthly 
minimum lease payment from $7,350 to $7,294 and, ( c) expressly eliminate the 
"financing agreement" terminology from the contract. It Is management's intention 
to classify this new master lease agreement as an operating lease. 
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c. Impact of Commonwealth and GOB Fiscal Plans 

The Oversight Board requi red the covered instrumenta lities under PROMESA to revise 
and submit their already certified and approved fiscal plans because of the effect of 
Hurricanes Irma and Maria. Fiscal plans from the Commonwealth and GDB have the 
most significant impact over PRIDCO's operations and finances, as follows: 

Commonwealth's Fjscaf plan 

The Oversight Board ce,tifled the Commonwealth's fiscal plan in March 2017. On 
October 30, 2017, the Oversight Board required the Commonwealth to revise it 
because the damage Inflicted on Puerto Rico by Hurricane Maria. A revised fisca l plan 
was certified on April 20, 2018 after intense negotiations. Due to further d iscussions 
between the Oversight Board and the Commonwealth, the Oversight Board updated 
and certified the fiscal plan In June 2018, which served as the basis for the 2019 fiscal 
year budget. On October 23, 2018 a New Fiscal Plan certified by the Oversight Board, 
incorporated refined healthcare projections based on actuarial estimates, new federal 
fund estimates, updated revenue and expenditure figures and changes in Government 
pol icy to impact overall growth based in two main areas as follows: 

a) Structural Reforms - measures to improve the economy such as (1) Human Capital 
and Welfare Reforms, (2) Ease of Doing Business Reforms, (3) Power Sector 
Reforms and ( 4) Infrastructure Reform and Capital Investment. 

b) Fiscal Reforms - fiscal measures to create a sustainable fiscal future for Puerto 
Rico by reducing costs while maintaining and improving the quality of important 
services. The measures include the following : (1) Tax compliance and fees 
enhancement, (2) Agency efficiencies, (3) Pension reform, (4) Healthcare reform, 
(5) Office of the CFO, and (6) Reduction of appropriations. The ultimate outcome 
of the reforms is undeterminable. 

Among the several measures to be taken, the following fiscal reforms may have a 
significant impact on PRIDCO's operations: 

• Tax compliance and fees enhancement - The Plan includes a comprehensive 
tax reform that intends to reduce corporate, individual and sales and use 
tax rates, eliminates non-revenue generating incentives and subsid ies w hile 
maintaining revenue neutrality. Measures may have a significant impact on 
PRIDCO's rental revenues. 

• Agm efficiencies - The plan includes the government restructuring 
measures to achieve fiscal savings and to create a more agile and efficient 
government, by reducing the number of agencies from 118 to 35. Act . l.41 
of July 11, 2018 enabled the fi rst reorganization plan that regulates the 
consolidation of ten agencies under the new Economic Development and 
Commerce Department (DDEC by Its Spanish acronym). The organizational 
chart of the new DDEC integrates the Tax Exemption Office, the State Office 
of Energy Policy, the Regional Center Corp., and the Permits & 
Endorsements Management Office, as programs or offices within DDEC. 
Likewise, the Trade & Export Co. and the Tourism Co. are integrated into 
DDEC once the paperwork required for their merger is completed . The 
Puerto Rico Industrial Development Co. and the Roosevelt Roads 
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Redevelopment Authority remain attached to the DDEC, with the Planning 
Board now also ascribed to the new DDEC. 

The new DDEC is going to carry out functions previously discharged by 
PRI DCO. The promotion and industria l incentives functions are fully 
transferred to the new DDEC. Also, the new DDEC Is entit led to manage, 
operate, rent, sell, lease, assign or otherwise dispose of PRIDCO's real 
estate inventory, when previously endorsed by PRIDCO. 

• Pension reform - The Plan includes the following measures: (1) freeze the 
Teachers (TRS) and Judiciary Retirement Systems (JRS) and t ransit ion 
them to a segregated defined cont ribution plan; (2) institute a 10% average 
pension reduction applicable to all actual retirees with combined retirement 
plan and Social Security benefits in excess of the poverty level of $1,000 
per month starting in FY 2020; (3) enroll teachers, police officers and judges 
under the age of 40 in the Social Securi ty. 

Even though, the Commonwealth has already taken critical steps towards a 
comprehensive reform of the ERS, on May 21, 2017 the Oversight Board fil ed a 
voluntary petition under Title III of PROMESA in the United States District Court for 
the District of Puerto Rico, as a result of the ERS's severe fiscal and liquidity crisis. 
Those critical steps taken by the Commonwealth and applicable to ERS include: (1) 
switch to a pay-as-you-go model to cover remaining defined benefit obligations, (2) 
segregate prospective employee contributions into new and separated defined 
contribution plans, (3) faci litate enrollment in socia l security for qual ifying participants 
and ( 4) improve investment alternatives offered to participants. The Commonwealth, 
and other participants of the ERS, including PRIDCO, were converted to a pay-as-you­
go model and carryforward to the new defined contribution plan starting July 1, 2017. 
Act No. 106 of August 23, 2017 was enacted to final ly provide the necessary legal and 
operational structure for the pay-as-you-go model and the new defined contribution 
plan : 

Pav-as-vou-go model - Effective July 1, 2017, the ERS changed to a pay­
as-you go funding, under which the participant employers directly pay 
pension benefits as they are due rather than attempt to build up assets to 
pre-fund future benefits. This funding method allows the retirement 
systems to continue to pay benefits even after the plans' assets have been 
exhausted. In addit ion, as a result of the implementation of pay-as-you-go 
funding, employers' contributions related to specia l laws and additional 
uniform contributions were eliminated. 

The ERS will create and maintain, for each participant or actual beneficiary, 
an individual record including the accrued pension benefits as of June 30, 
2017, benefits payments, employment history and accumulated 
contributions made. After that date participants will cease to accrue new 
benefits. The accrued pension benefits will be funded through: (a) the net 
proceeds of the sa le of ERS's assets, (b) Commonwealth's legislative 
expenditure appropriations, (c) donations by any public or private entity, 
(d) 25% of fi rst or periodic payments on public-private partnership 
contracts, (e) other funds determined by the Commonwealth's Legislature, 
and (f) a PayGo charge to the participant employers, including PRIDCO. 
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This PayGo charge, determined by ERS and billed by the Puerto Rico 
Department of Treasury (PRDT), represents the amounts necessary for the 
monthly pension payments for each of thei r retirees and benefici aries. 
Payments will be made by the employers through a government treasury 
single account (TSA) maintained on a separate t rust under the custody of 
the PRDT. TSA funds are deposited and maintained in a private commercial 
bank. It is expected that as the ERS's assets become depleted, the PayGo 
charge will Increase. Participants are no longer able to make direct credit 
payments to the TSA account or to make additional contributions to the 
ERS. 

New defined contribution plan - Effective July 1, 2017, a new defined 
cont ribution plan (DCP} was created covering all active participants of the 
ERS as of that date and part icipants enrolled in the publ ic service after that 
date. It is governed by a Retirement Board composed of thhteen ( 13) 
members (government officials, representa tives of teachers, j udicial 
system, public corporations and mayors). 

Funds are maintained in indiv idual accounts for each participant which are 
credited with participant's pre-tax contributions and investment earnings. 
Participants are required to contribute at least 8.5% of thier g ross salary. 
The Pian provides for voluntary additional pre-tax contributions as 
permitted by the Puerto Rico Internal Revenue Code of 2011 (2011 PR 
Code) . Upon enrollment in the Plan, participants may direct the investment 
of their contributions into various investment options offered by the Plan. 

Upon termination of service a part icipant or the participant beneficiaries 
may elect to receive an amount equal to the value of the participant's 
interest in his or her account in a lump-sum amount, maintain his or her 
account in the DCP, or roll-over their account to a qualified plan under the 
2011 PR Code. Upon participant's death the account balance w ill be 
dist ributed to its designated beneficiaries. Dist ributions are . subject to 
income tax In accordance with the provisions of the 2011 PR Code. 

The t ransition to the new DCP has not yet been completed. The new DCP 
will be maintained in a separate trust under the custody of the Secretary of 
the PRDT unt il the Retirement Board has entered into a contract with an 
Administrative Ent ity. After that, all funds and participants accounts w ill be 
t ransferred to the separate trust created by the Administrative Entity for 
the maintenance and administration of the funds. 

Closure of EDB 

The New Fiscal Plan also includes a proposal for the closure of the EDB. The EDB is the 
main Institution fo r financing new businesses in Puerto Rico but has been seriously 
affected by the financial crisis . Its operational deterioration began with the downgrade 
of the Commonwealth's credit rat ing In 2014. This action led private entities to ret ire 
their businesses from the EDB. That same downgrade prevented the Government 
Development Bank (GDB) from receiving capital, due to the refinancing of the debt 
owed by the Highways and Transportation Authority (PRHTA). The GDB crisis made 
many public agencies and corporations move their deposits from the EDB to the GOB, 
limiting the institu tion's capacity to issue commercial loans. This diversion of deposits 
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from EDB to GOB led the EDB to the point of liquidating Its entire investment portfolio. 
Those Investments had produced an additional income to keep successfully the 
operations of the EDB. Losing that income and liquidity affected the bank's operations. 
Currently, EOB is dependent on the interest generated by the loans granted which the 
default rate on those loans is of around 20%, due to the level of its inherent risk. 

Even though EOB took several measures to control the decline, like keeping actively 
loaning, creat ing a system to better identify the risk of loans and a scale of prices or 
Interest adjusted to the applicant business efforts they were not enough. {Refer to 
Note 3) 

GDB's Fiscal Plan 

GOB served as a lender to the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, its instrumentalities 
and municipalities in anticipation of the Issuance of long-term bonds and notes by 
those entities in the municipal bond marke t . Loans to the Commonwealth and Its 
instrumentalities constitute a significant portion of GOB's assets. A severe fiscal and 
liquidity crisis of those entities resulted in operational deficits, lack of access to capital 
markets and delays in the repayment of loans outstanding with GDB. This in turn left 
GDB with significant non-performing assets, limited liquidity, and inability to repay 
its debts as they come due. 

Consequently, the Commonwealth issued moratorium Acts and executive orders to 
establish a regulatory framework governing GOB's operations and liquidity, prohibit 
loan disbursements and establish procedures on withdrawals, payments and transfer 
requests with respect of funds held on deposits by the Commonwealth and Its 
Instrumental ities. Later, the Puerto Rico Fiscal Agency and Financia l Advisory 
Authority {AAFAF) was created pursuant Act No. 21 of 2016 and Act No. 2 of 2017, 
as an independent public corporation and governmental instrumentality to assume all 
fisca l agency, financial advisory, and reporting functions of GOB. 

GOB's Fiscal Plan estab lishes financial restructuring and closing of GOB operations 
that will allow for a smooth transition of GOB's current operations. Consequently, a 
Restructuring Support Agreement, dated May 15, 2017 ( RSA) provides for the 
restructuring of a significant portion of GDB's liabilities. On June 2017, GOB submitted 
to the Oversight Board a proposed amended Fiscal Plan that incorporated the 
structure agreed, which was certified and approved by the Oversight Board on July 
l.2, 2017. GDB's substantial operations ceased in March 2018, after AAFAF 
announced certain amendments to the RSA which became effective pursuant to its 
terms on April 6, 2018, after obtain ing the signature of the number of holders of 
GOB's Pc!rticipating Bond Cla ims required. The amended RSA contemplates dividing 
GOB's assets into two separate entities: a New Issuer (GOB Debt Recovery Authority) 
for the benefit of its financia l credi tors consisting of bondholders, municipal 
depositors, and non-government entity depositors and a Public Ent ity Trust (PET) for 
the benefit of (a) those non-municipal governmental ent ities having claims in respect 
to funds deposited at GOB and (b) those municipalities with federal funds deposited 
at GDB. GOB's updated Fiscal Plan was approved by the Oversight Board on April 20, 
2018. The RSA was fi nally executed on November 29, 2018. 
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2017 2016 2015 2014 

Proportion o f t he net pension liability 0.4796% 0 .4856% 0.4881% 0.4356% 

Proportionat e share of the net pension liab ility (c} $180,808 $161,881 $147,100 $122,944 

Covered-Payroll (d) $ 13,499 $ 14,530 $ 14,760 $ 15,847 

Proport ionat e share of t he net pension liability as a 
percentage of Its covered - payroll (c)/(d) 1339.4 2% 1114.12% 996.61% 775.82% 

Plan's fiduciary net position as a percentage of t he total 
pension liability (3.47)% (2 .05)% (. 27)% 2 .47% 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this required supplementary Information. 
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PUERTO RICO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
SCHEDULE OF PRIDCO'S CONTRIBUTIONS - PENSION PLAN (IN THOUSANDS) 
(UNAUDITED) 
FOR T HE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

2017 2016 2015 2014 

Statutory required contribution $ 2,096 $ 1,890 $ 1,803 $ 1,701 

Cont ributions in relation t o the stat uto ry 

required contribut ion (e) 2,096 1,890 1,803 1,701 

Cont ribution deficiency (excess) $ $ $ $ 

PRIDCO'S covered - payroll ( f) $ 13,499 $14,530 $ 14,760 $ 15,847 

Contributions as a percent age of covered- 15.53% 13 .01% 12.22% 10.73% 

payroll (e)/(f) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this requlrecl supplementary inform atlor>. 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

1. The schedules are intended to show information for ten years. Additional 'years will be 
displayed as they become available. The information presented relates _solely to 
PRIDCO and not the Employee's Retirement System of the Government of the 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. 

2. The Schedule of PRIDCO's Contributions provides information about the annual 
required contributions (ARC) and the extent to which contributions were made to cover 
the ARC. The ARC is the annual requ ired contribution for the year. It is established 
by law and ca lculated in accordance with certain parameters, which include, actuaria l 
methods and assumptions. 

3. The data provided in the schedules is based as of the measurement date of the net 
pension liabili ty, which is as of the prior fiscal year ended June 30th

• 
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PUERTO RICO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN CASH AND SINKING FUND PER TRUST INDENTURE (IN 
THOUSANDS) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Balance at June 30, 2016 
cash prov ided by operating 
activities 
Collections of capita l contribut ions 
Payn-.ents for capit a l assets 
Payment of bonds 
Proceeds from sale of p roperties 
Payment of notes and loans 
Payment of Interest 
Payment of obligations under 
capital leases 
Interest collected on investments, 
loans and other non-operating 
revenue 
Net payments to Comm:inwealth of 
Puerto Rico 

Balance at June 30, 2017 

Total 

$ 63,594 

23,083 
2, 180 

(8,196) 
(10,065) 

6,469 
(9,613) 

(14,945) 

(215) 

308 

(5,951) 

$ 46,649 

Balance at June 30, 2017 represented by: 
Cash and cash equivalent available 
for operations $ 

S inking fund reserve accounts, 
rest ricted 

32,926 

13 723 

$ 46,649 

50 

General 
Fund 

$ 31,550 

23,083 
2,180 

(8,196) 

6,469 
(9,613) 
(6,665) 

(215) 

284 

(5,951) 

$ 3 2,926 

$ 32,926 

$ 32,926 

US Bank T rust Indent u re 
Principal and Reserve 

Interest Account 

$ 10,026 $ 22,018 

(8,460) (1,605) 

(1,567) (6,713) 

1 23 

$ 13,723 

$ 

$ 13,lll_ 
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